CITY OF FRANKLIN
COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING
MONDAY, JUNE 6, 2016, 6:30 P.M.
COMMON COUNCIL CHAMBERS, FRANKLIN CITY HALL
9229 W. LOOMIS ROAD, FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
AGENDA

1, Call to Order and Roll Call.
2, Update on the Status of the Ballpark Commons Development Project.
3. 2015 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the City of Franklin and the

Required Communications Letter from Clifion Larson Allen, LLP Certified
Public Accountants.

4, Request by Alderman D. Mayer for Recommendation Regarding Location and
Day of Monthly St. Martins Fairs; and Future Green Markets and Future Farmers
Markets.

5. Adjournment.

*Notice is given that a majority of the Plan Commission may attend this meeting to gather information about an agenda
item over which the Plan Commission has decision-making responsibility. This may constitute a meeting of the Plan
Commission, per State ex rel, Badke v, Greendale Village Board, even though the Plan Commissien will not take
formal action at this meeting.

*+Supporting documentation and details of these agenda items are available at City Hall during normal business hours,

[Note: Upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of disabled individuals through
appropriate aids and services, For additional information, contact the City Clerk’s office at (414} 425-7500.]
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- MEETING DATE
Approval - Council Action Sheet
ki) 6/7/16
REPORTS & Update on the status of the Ballpark Commons IgEgi[JNU(%ER
RECOMMENDATIONS development proposal T
Background

City of Franklin staff continues to coordinate with the Balipark Commons development team as they work
to meet the conditions set forth by the general plan approval granted at the April 4, 2016 Common
Council meeting and to consider a tax increment finance {TIF} district for the area. With prior
authorization from the Common Council, staff has contracted an independent market analysis of the
project with Melaniphy & Associates and a TIF analysis with Ehlers. Both analyses are underway.

TIF Timeline:

Ehlers is preparing to make a TIF feasibility analysis presentation at the June 28" meeting of the Common
Council. Their analysis will include variable modeling based on feedback from Melaniphy’'s market
analysis. If the Council would like to proceed at that time, a tentative schedule is in place for notifications
to property owners and taxing authorities, drafting a project ptan, and the hosting of public hearings and
Joint Review Board meetings to occur this summer. The Council would then be in a position to review and
take action on district project plans to actually create the TIF before September 30, 2016.

Note that under Wisconsin law, a TIF district created prior to September 30" uses the current year’s
assessments as a baseline (1/1/16). A district formed after September 30" uses the following year’s
assessments (1/1/17). In the case of Balipark Commaons, additional increment is likely to be captured if the
district is created prior to September 30, 2016. Not only are the taxable portions of the development likely
to increase in value year-over-year, but the former Department of Transportation land (between Crystal
Ridge Drive and Loomis Road) will go from having zero taxable value when it was owned by the State to
some positive number since it was acquired by the development team. By acting on the district prior to
September 30", the increase in tax value can be captured by the tax increment district.

TIF Boundary: :

Staff will be asking Ehlers to analyze a district roughly based on the boundary outlined in the map

below. This only includes land west of Loomis Road, NOT land east of Loomis that was part of the City’s
larger Planning Area A. This decision came after careful consideration and discussion with Ehiers and the
Ballpark Commeoens development team. The more narrowly defined district will help ensure increment
generated from the Ballpark Commans development is utilized for expenses associated with meeting the
“but for” requirements of the development. When larger development is more immediately anticipated
on land east of Loomis, the TIF boundary could be amended or a second TIF district could be created for
the rest or other portions of Area A.

The triangle of land south of Rawson, between Old Loomis and Loomis Roads is currently part of the
Loomis Road right of way. It cannot be included in the proposed TiF district unless it is parceled off of the
much larger Loomis Road parcel. There may be an opportunity to do so, particularly if this section of Old
Loomis and the nearhy southbound ramp entrance to Loomis are redesigned, as proposed in the City's
traffic impact analysis discussed below. At that time, the City could amend the boundary of the district to
include this land.
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Loomis Road TIA:

In 2015, the City contracted with GRAEF to conduct a traffic impact analysis (TIA) for removing the ramps
associated with Loomis Road near 76 Street and Rawson Avenue, 1o increase development potential in
Area A. An analysis based on conceptual develepment plans was prepared and submitted to the
Wisconsin Department of Transportation in February of 2016. The DOT has reviewed the plan and
requested additional information to clear up discrepancies between the original plan and the currently
proposed Ballpark Commons development. Staff is in discussions with GRAEF and the Ballpark Commons
development team as to how to appropriately respond to the DOT.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion to receive and file update on the status of the Ballpark Commons development proposal.

Economic Development: AMH
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REPORT OF THE CITY OF FRANKLIN AND THE G, o S s

e

APPROVAL REQUEST FOR MEETING DATE
Sl COUNCIL ACTION June 7, 2016
REPORTS & 2015 COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANGIAL |  ITEM NUMBER

RECOMMENDATIONS REQUIRED COMMUNICATIONS LETTER FROM

CLIFTON LARSON ALLEN, LLP CPA’S

The 2015 Comprehensive Annual Financiai Report (CAFR) will be presented by the Director of
Finance & Treasurer. Jacob Lenell, partner with Clifton Larson Allen, LLC presented this report
to the Finance Committee on May 31, 2016 and reported an un-qualified opinion on the
statements and no deficiencies identified in the audit.

The Finance Committee recommends acceptance of the report.

The CAFR report is attached.

Upon acceptance of the report at the regular Common Council meeting, Clifton Larson Allen, LLC can
complete their work and issue a final report.

This report is a major effort of the entire City Government, but more specifically the Finance Dept. As
its name implies, it presents a Comprehensive look at the 2015 financial picture of the City of
Franklin. In essence, this report ties a bow on the Annual Budgeting activity as it provides
accountability on compliance with the Budgeting process and much more.

There are two formats, the Governmental which we discuss from month to month and focus on when
developing the annual budget. And then the Government wide statements, which brings Debt and
related Capital Assets, along with other obligations/commitments the City has made, principally to
employees, and presents a more complete picture. Pension related balance sheet items are first
appearing on the statements in 2015,

The Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) starting on page 12, provides an overview of
both sets of statements. That is an important 12 page read.

A look at Budgetary performance is presented for the two major funds, the General Fund, and the
Debt Service Fund. Budgetary performance is also provided for significant Non-Major funds such as
the Library, Solid Waste and Capital Funds. Exhibit F and Schedules 3 & 4 provide a summary and
more detailed report on 2015 Actual results on a budgetary Basis for the General Fund. (See page
31) Note that total revenues were 0.8% above budget, while actual expenditures were only 92.9% of
original budget. The Original Budget anticipated a $926,000 deficit (including a $950,000 restricted
contingency) from operations. Actual operating results were a $1,050,948 surplus before transfers
infout. The General Fund had net transfers out totaling $574,000. All tolled, the 2015 General Fund
had a Original budgeted $1,450,000 deficit, while actual results were a $476,946 surplus before
encumbrances.

Budgetary controls are in place to protect against spending beyond the authorized appropriations.
2014 encumbrances and budgetary amendments added $217,071 of authorized spending to the
2015 adopted budget. Still actual spending was within original budget in all Activities except Culture &
Recreation where Parks Personnel costs exceeded the original budget for maintenance projects.
Parks and Highway share personnel, and some of the Highway personnel costs were transferred to




parks. Both departments were within the original budget on a combined basis.

The ending 2015 General Fund balance totaled $9,049,909. Of that, only $6,662,986 is Unassigned.
See page 27 for more details on the availability of fund balance.

Exhibit D (page 29) provides a summary of the actual results for all Governmental funds, the three
major funds, and a summary of the non-major funds. On a Governmental basis, the General
Government has a $21,194,223 fund balance. Of that, $2.2 million is non-spendable. See Exh C
(page 27) for more details on fund balance.

Exhibits G, H & | present the Proprietary (Water & Sanitary Sewer Fund) & Internal Service (Active
Employee Health insurance fund) fund results. 2015 is another year where these funds operated at a
deficit, by design. The Enterprise funds are not building reserves to replace the tens of millions of
dollars of infrastructure that has been contributed by developers, but will eventually need to be
replaced. Longer term, this is a financing challenge the City faces.

Exhibit J & K (pages 37 & 38) speak to the Fiduciary Funds. These funds belong to other parties, but
are maintained by the City. The larger of the two, Agency funds, holds Real Estate tax collections that
were distributed in January 2016. The other, the Post Employment Benefit Trust is similar to a
pension fund, in that it holds assets to satisfy estimated future retiree health claims. The Common
Council decided in 2008 to create this fund. Eventually retiree health care annual operating charges
will be reduced as this fund becomes fully funded. See the footnotes related to Post Employment
Benefits.

The footnotes are an important part of the statements, as they outline the Significant Accounting
Policies that govern how the statements are prepared. There are notes on significant account
balances, such as cash & investments, capital assets used to provide services, inter-fund balances,
(including the $4.1 million in long term advances). Inter-fund activity includes the $1,044,459
transferred to the General Fund by the Water Utility as a PILOT. That payment holds water rates up
and Real Estate Taxes down. A description of the long term debt of the City and when it is due is
detailed beginning on page 62.

A description of Fund Balances begins on page 64.

New in 2015, as a result of Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) 68, is the pension
information. The excess and unfunded balances of the Cities plans are now on the face of the
statements (see Exhibit A) and detailed in the footnotes. The City participates in three pension plans,
the Wisconsin Retirement System for Public Safety employees, a defined contribution plan for the
former represented Public Works group and a Defined Contribution plan for all other eligible
employees. The WRS plan is over funded and the City has a $2.0 million restricted asset related to
that plan. The DPW plan is underfunded, and a $1.1 million liability now exists related to it. The
Defined Contribution plan has no related asset or liability, as there i is no guaranteed benefit that
requires an actuarial review.

Beginning on page 89 are details of the individual governmental funds, starting with the Special
Revenue and Capital funds on Sch 1 & 2. Detailed General Fund Budgetary information is provided
on Sch 3 & 4 for the General Fund which demonstrates compliance with the budgetary controls.
Additional Budgetary information on the Debt Service fund is on Sch 5, and the Library on Sch 6. The
Solid Waste fund has budgetary information on Sch 7. Sch 8 provides budgetary information on all
the Capital Funds except the Utility Development fund which had no 2015 budgetary controls. Sch 9
provides more detailed information on the Fiduciary Funds. Sch 10 & 11 give details on the TIDs and
Sch 12 gives details on the fixed assets used to provide services.




Beginning on page 109, historical statistical information is provided for the City. This section becomes
a great ready reference with a decade long view point.
o Tables 1 & 2 provide Government Wide information and Tables 3 & 4 give Governmental

Financial activity.
e Tables 5 & 6 provide information on property values, which become the base for tax rates.
¢ Table 7 is history of the tax rates for all taxing authorities involved with the City.
e Table 8 provides a historical perspective on the largest tax payers.
» Tables 9 & 10 provides history on tax levies and collections.
» Tables 11, 12 & 13 provide information on the City's debt.
¢ Tables 14 & 15 provides an economic overview of the City.
s Table 16 gives a history on City employees by function.
« Finally Tables 17 & 18 gives some operating indicators on the City.

This 2015 CAFR gives a picture of the consequences of policy decisions made by Common Council
and their long term impact on City finances. Decisions such as creating the Equipment Replacement
Fund to accommodate replacing expensive equipment over time, the Solid Waste Fund to remove
that cost from Tax Levy controls, the Development funds to provide a funding source for infrastructure
supporting new development, and the OPEB Trust which will significantly reduce the tax burden for
retiree health costs in the future.

A future challenge is the lack of resources to deal with replacing utlhty infrastructure. This becomes a
long term issue.

Finally, let me express appreciation to the Finance & Treasury staff for their efforts to prepare
this document. Without their assistance, this report would not be possible.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion to receive and place on file the 2015 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR),
from Clifton Larson Allen, L.LLP, CPA’s.

_ Finance - PAR
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DIRECTOR OF FINANCE & TREASURER

PAUL ROTZENBERG, CPA
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June 7, 2016

Citizens of Franklin, Honorable Mayor and Common Council members:

Introduiction

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the City of Frankiin, Wisconsin for the fiscal
year ended December 31, 2015, is hereby submitted. State law requires that all local
governmeants with a popuiatzon over 25,000 publish a complste set of financial statements
that are presented in conformity with genersl accepted accounting principles (GAAP) :and
audited In accordance with generally accepled audifing standards by a firm of licensed
certified public accountants. '

This report consists of management's representations concerning the finances of the City of
Franklin {City). Consequently, management assumes full responsibility for the completeness
and relisbility of all of the information presented in this report. Tg &O‘JEGQ 5 reasonable basls
for making these representations, management of the City haaaes blished a comprehensive
intamnal control framework that is desrgned both to prof as%e government’s assefs from
loss, thefl, or misuse and to compile su e ;ab@ﬂt Srmation for the preparation of the
City's financial statements in conformi tgs\’m%': ?2 Because the cost of intetnal controls
should not ocutweigh the bensfits é‘gfé?&i s 0 pz‘ehengwe framework of intemnal controls
has been designed to prw;de 16t therg an zﬁ%@igﬂe assurance that the financial
statements will be free f‘r ate::ta% sgia{é,meﬁt%&& anagement, we assert that, to the
best of our knowledys d am‘.:lai is complete and refiable in alf material
respacts. All discl 03&!’%3 g ‘fg e reader {o gain an understanding of the
City's financial actwsiles‘éﬁave %e)mﬁ in x@e@ in this report.

The City's financial statem?enta fisve been audited hy CliftonLarsonAllen LLP, a firm of
gertified public accountants s{i&@énenced in auditing governmental-entities. The goal-of the
independent audit is o provide reasonable assurance that the finandial statements of the
City for the fiscal year énded December 31, 2015, are free of material misstatement. The
independent audit involves examining, on. a test basis; evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements; assessing the accourting pr inciples used and
sighificant estimates made by management; and evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation, The independent auditor conciuded. based upon the audit; that there was
reasonable basis for rendering an ungualified opinion that the City's financial statements for
the fiscat year ended December 31, 2015, are faitly presented in confortity with GAAP.
The independent auditor's report is pr&sen%ed as the first component of the findncial section
of this report.

BAAP requires that management provide 2 narrative introduction; overview and analysis to
actompany the basic financial statements in the form of. Managemsnt's Discussion and
Analysis (MD&A) This letter of transmittal is designed to.complement the MD&A and should.
be read in conjunction with it. The City's MD&A can be found immediately following the
report of the independent auditors.

9229 West Loomis Road, Franklin, Wisconsin 551999728  (414) 425-7500 Fax: (414) 427-7527
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City Profile

The City of Franklin, incorporaled in 1856, is located in the southwestern corner of
Milwaukee County. The City is 34.5 square miles in size and has a population of 35,655.
Over the last ten years the Cily has experienced an average annual population increase of
1.0 % per vear. The Cily is a regidential communily (73.8%) with & commercial and industrial
base (254 %). Approximately 35% of the acreage in the City is undeveloped, which
demands attention to growth igsues. It s considered o be ohe of the more desirable
communities in the Milwaukee metropolitan area in which to live and work. The City provides
a iypical range of municipal services for a suburban communify including police, fire
protection, emergency medical/paramedic, maintenance of sireets and other infrastructure,
ibrary, public health services, recreational aclivities, buiiding inspection, zoning control,
refuse collection, recycling coliection, sahilary sewer, sform sewer and water services, both
consfruction and mainienance. The City is authorized fo levy property tax on real and
personal properiy located within its boundaries to support the services provided.,

The City operates under the mayorfecouncil form of government Policy making and
legisiative authority are vested in a governing council consisting of a mayor and six council
members. The governing council is responsible, among other things, for passing
ordinances, adopting the budgel, appeinting commitiees and hiring a city afiomey. The
City's Mayor is responsible for carrying out the policies andygrdinances of the governing
council, for overseeing the day-to-day operations of the g@@nﬁent and for appointing the
heads of the various departments. The Council is gletted, by disfrict, on 8 non-partisan
basis. The Mayor and Council memb&@“%wg Stagaered three-year terms. The City is
organized info depariments, hea eﬁ@gb‘? fen _'c‘ials appointed by the Mayor or Director of
Administration and conﬁrmegl:}igg?; he . Qfmon LCouncil, Numerous boards, commissions
and committees allow for citizén in jeme ’g’iﬁé&}v 3 nt by providing a forum for policy
input to the Cwnci@Q&guida&@aiﬁ ﬂpjg”%ért@gd s, Library service is provided through a
separate Library Bd;a?d&fhaﬁgﬁmﬁglgggiké a ﬁgéa ment of the City and engages the Library
Director. Water serviea(ls pro 'g’ed“thr&?@%} a separate Water Ulility that functions like a
department of the City. g&;@ 0 aréas therefore have been included as an integral part of
the City’s financial stalerfienis 'F;’ﬁé City also is financially accountable for a legally separate
Community Development A“i% rity {Authority). The Authority's activities are reported within
the City's financial statements. Additional information on the Authority can be found in Note

1 in the notes to the financial statements.

The budgetary process serves as the foundation of the City's financial planning and control
system. The objective of the budgelary process is {o ensure compliance with legal
provisions embodied in the annual appropriated budget approved by the Common Council.
The preparation of a forecast for the existing programs for the following vear is prepared
during July and August. Departmental requests for personnel changes and new capiial
outiay expenditures are made by the middle of August. The Mayor then reviews the forecast
including recommended perscnnel and capital oullay expenditures and determines by mid
August the personnel and capital ouflay expenditures thal will be included in the initial
departmental requested budgets. The depariments take this information and submit their
requesied budgets by the end of August. The budgets are reviewed and the Mayor submits
his recommended budget by the middie of September. The Council reviews the
recommended budget and agrees on a proposed budget by mid October, The Council is
required to hold a public hearing on the proposed budget in early November, and then
adopts a final budget in mid November, The adopted budget is prepared by fund, function
{e.g. Public Safely), and department (e.g. Police). Transfers of appropriations between
funds, functions or depariment require the approval of the governing council, Budget-to-

Page 2
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June 7, 2018

actual comparisons are provided in this report for each governmental fund with an adopted
budget. The General Fund comparison is presented in Exhibit F as pari of the basic financial
statemenis for the governmental funds and in Schedules 3 & 4 of the supplementary
information. For governmental funds other than the General Fund with adopted budgets, this
comparison is presented in the suppiementary information section of this report.

The information presented in the financial statements is perhaps best understood when
considersd from the broader perspective of the environment that the City operates,

Economic Condition and Qutivok

The economic aclivity in Franklin in both the residential and the non-residential sectors was
stable. New construction was lower in 2015 compared fo 2014 as evidenced by reduced
construction permit revenues. Prospects in 2016 for residential, commercial and indusirial
development are anticipated to be on a par fo 2015, with growth dependent upon the
development of new subdivisions and business parks.

Estimated actual property values have grown at an average annual rate of 1.8% since
2006. The new growth net of TIF Districts was $33.7 million in 2015, $46.8 million in 2014,
and $34.8 million in 2013, The growth in 2018 is expected 1o be in the $20 to $30 million
dollar range refiecting the level of economic activity. The historical growth has allowed the
City fo maintain a relatively low municipal {ax rate while gmj funding the increased cost of
services required as a result of the City's growth. ﬂ@% N

AR B
00 _ @2‘?{:}

Residential Growth . ,@u
Over the past ten years, resiq%‘&i;&?‘f‘vagxaﬁ hgﬁsffgrewn at an average annual rate of 1.8 %.

Lingering effects of the & onoz’i’ﬁtcAsig%ﬂ%\i}w}a{?{!?‘éehpdg pwth from new construction in 2016
at about the same | \%e;ghis _2015,23ng (kahge AR City has the most developable land in
the County and remﬁ%ﬁs a *@ﬂ‘iVejQ“@.mdeé ind potential residents.
LS 5;{:" B2 :
Commercial and Industrial Growthy &
Over the past fen years?é’gm}mié%ét and industrial valuation has increased at an average
X104

annual rate of 2.8 %. by

In 2005, two TIF Districts (#3 & #4) were established on the sastermn side of the City. The two
districts have equalized value fax increments of $73 and $55 million, respectively.

Anticipated residential growth will continue o place demands on the commercial seclor for
goods and services that, in fum, is expecied io continue the trend of commercial growth.
Expansion of the commercial and industrial tax base is a goal of the City with respect to the
overall tax rate. Currently 73.9 % of the City's property value is residential compared to 76.7
% ten vears ago. Future tax refief will need to come from industrial and commercial tax base
expansion.

Organizational and Service Growth

25 was a year where overall revenue rose 0.8% compared to budget and 1.8%
comparsd to last year. A temporary increase in computer equipment located in the City
drove staie exempt computer aids up $244,000 in 2015.

215 was not a City-wide property reassessment year. The iast reassessment was done in
2010. A re-valuation was completed in 2013, Performing revaluations on a regular basis is in
line with the Common Council policy to schedule a revaluation every three years fo keep
property values in line with current market values. The State determined that the local

Page 3
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assessments after reassessments were 92.7% of fair value. The estimated actual value of
City properties was approximately $3.8 billion.

The chailenge for the operating depariments in 2015 was to continue o maintain service
levels at a time of flat revenues and growth of 0.94% in new properties.

Internal Controis

The City's internal controf sfruciure is subject {o ongoing evalugtion by management. The
City is responsible for ensuring that an adequale infernal control structure is in place fo
gnsure compliance with laws, regulations and good financial policies. The results of the
City's audit for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2015 provided no instances of material
weaknesses in the internal control structure or significant violations of applicable laws or
regulations. As a recipient of federal and state financial assistance, if the level of grant
expenditures exceeds an established ievel, currently $ 750,000, a single audit of grants is
required. The City was not required to have a single audit of grants for 2015.

Financial Planning

Long range financial planning is in place, especially for the capilal funds and debt service
funds, o ensure that resources are in place 1o meet committed projects and ensure that
there is adequate funding for projects prior to their approval am that adequate funding is in
place for debt that has been or will be incurred, with an ap;é’\ efpnate plan for repayment.
g\é 22~

Financial Policies Ty

The City maintains policies on fumgt“ébaiaﬂ ""ffef\?éi debt policy, investment policies, budget
forecasting policy and & cap fizatio €‘QD[!C3I JQ}ese policies, together with conservative
management, has sewegig the Cii a e fste e?o’f a fund balance enabled the fund
balance {o be uttl;zgﬁ Q%dﬁm g tﬁg evenuq’jé gline and replenished in 2010 and 2011
when revenue stab éed T Cft)(r %;a;ap«e ﬁgqé .debt markets in 2014, for the first time since
2008, to finance two Fm fér cag;a pro;e “ Debt Service planning has permitted a steadily
declining Debt Service I@g{}g é

Awards %{*}

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United Stales and Canada (GFQA)
awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City for its
Comprehensive Anhual Financial Report {CAFR) for the year ended December 31, 2014,
The Certtificate of Achievement is s prestigious national award recognizing conformance
with the highest standards for preparation of state and local government financial reporis.
This was the 23rd consecutive vear that the City has received this award.

in order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, the Cily must publish an easily
readable and efficierdly organized CAFR whose contents conform {0 program standards.,
Such report must satisfy both accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America and applicabie legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year. We believe that our current
CAFF continues to mest the Certificate of Achievement Program’s requirements. We will be
submitting the CAFR io the GFOA to determine its eligibility for a 2015 Certificate,

Acknowledgments

Preparafion of this repori on a timely basis could not have been accomplished without the
sfficient and dedicated services of the Finance Department staff.  Appreciation is also
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Mayor, Common Council and Cilizens
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extended to all other City employvees who confributed to its preparation. We also thank the
Mayor, Common Council, and Finance Commitiee for their interesi and support in planning
and conducting the financial operations of the City in 2 responsible manner.

Respectfully submitted,

Ay
£

/

Paul Rctzenbergf CPA
Director of Finance & Treasurer
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INDEPENDENT AURITORS' REPORT

Common Council
ity of Franklin, Wisconsin
Frankiin, Wisconsin

Report on the Financlal Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmenial activities, the business-
type activitie, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund iqigrmatien of the City of Franklin,
Wisconsin, as of and for the year ended December 31, 2015, a{&;{tke budgetary comparison for the
General Fund for the year then ended, and the related :%ogs‘.“to the financial statements, which
coliectively comprise the entity's basic financial s@é@e@%@% fsted in the table of contents.

T ey Y
Management's Responsibility for the_@?ﬁ%%gggg% fements
Management is responsible for the | rgpagg 5 %@Jg{a@% pra%e%aﬁon of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting r%g ?ples&’%a%?aﬂy»“g‘a@%p;g%;{faithe United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation,/and i ?n%enaiggé‘%f intétaal control relevant to the preparation and fair

presentation of financial stat%ggggts ilg)agfa?e fr&;’éﬁ?ﬁﬁ material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error. NI o' o E‘Q% ;
‘.x i {Q‘%

Auditors’ Responsibility %{}%ﬁ’

Our responsibility is fo express opinions on these financial statements based on ow audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable o financial audits contained in Government Audifing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards reguire that we plan and
perform the audit to obiain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to oblain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial siatemenis. The procedures selected depend on the audiiors’ judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due fo fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal controf relevant to the entity's
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, buf not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also inciudes
evaiuating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evalualing the overall presentation of the
financial statements.




Common Council
City of Franklin, Wisconsin

We beiieve that the audit evidence we have obifained is sufficient and appropriate o provide a basis for
our audit opinions.

Opinions

in eur opinion, the financial statemenis referred to sbove present fakrly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmenta! activities, the business-type activities, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund informetion of the Cily of Franklin, Wisconsin as of December 31,
2015, and the budgetary comparison for the General Fund for the year then ended, and the respective
changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles genereily accepled in the United States of America.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited the City of Franklin, Wisconsin's 2014 financial stalemenis and we
expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those financial statements in our report dated May 5, 2015. In
our opinion, the summarized comparative information presented for the Water Utility and Sanitary Sewer
Utility Enterprise Funds presented herein as of and for the year ended December 31, 2014 is consistent,
in alt material respecis, with the audited financial statements from Whiah it was derived

Other Matt f’”“?{: ’
er Matters
~ ﬂ@tﬁ

Regired Supplementary information LS {}J

Accounting principies generally accepled g{t«ihz‘g nited: %fates of America require that the management
discussion and analysis, the schedui&eﬁfﬁmdmg@rog{esﬁ schegule of city’s proportionate share of the
net pension lability (asset), saheduie o cii“gﬁzémtr t:ﬁ& s, set sdule of changes in net pension Hability
and related ratios, and se qwg*of c::gngabutmnéfbﬁ ;Jagggﬁ‘&t and 85-86 be presented fo suppiement
the basic financial s’{atemeﬁ?} Su,c nformairpn* alihggigﬁ not a part of the basic financial statements, is
tequired by the Govemment g}icoumﬁ Sta ?é!s Board who considers i {o be an essential part of
financial reporiing for placing t ggggc)finaﬁé?ai statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
historical context. We have app é%asa fimited procedures to the required supplementary information
in accordance with audiing staﬁi 5 generally accepted in the United States of America, which
consisted of inguiries of managerﬁem about the methods of preparing the information and comparing
the information for consistency with management's responses {0 our inquiries, the basic financial
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audif of the basic financial statements. We do
not express an opinion or provide any assurance oh the information because the limited procedures do
not provide us with sufficient evidence fo express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Infarmation

Qur audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City of Frankiin, Wisconsin's basic financial statements. The combining and individual
fund financial statements and schedules, fisted in the table of contents are presented for purposes of
additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial stafements.

The combining and individual fund financial statements and schedules are the responsibility of
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used 1o prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjecied fo the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlving accounting and other
records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves,
and other additional procedures in accordance with audifing standards generally accepted in the Uniled
States of America. in our opinion, the combining and individuat fund financial statements and schedules

iC




Common Council
City of Franklin, Wisconsin

is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation o the basic financial statements as a whole.

The infroduciory section and the stalistical tables have not been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or
provide any assurance on them.

Other Reporiing Required by Government Auaditing Standards

in accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated June __,
2016, on our consideration of the City of Franklin, Wisconsin's internal control over financial reporting
and on our fests of its compliance with cerfain provisions of laws, reguiations, contracts, and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over financial reporiing and compliance and the result of that testing, and not to provide
an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of
an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering City of Franklin,
Wisconsin's internal control over financial reporting and compiiance.
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City of Frankiin, Wisconsin
Management's Discussion and Analysis
{Unaudited}

As management of the City of Franklin (City), we offer readers of the City's financial statements this
narrative overview and analysis of the financial aclivities of the City for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2015. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction
with additional information that we have furnished in our letter of transmittal, which can be found on
pages 1-5 of this report.

Financial Highlights

« The assets of the Cily exceeded its liabilities as of December 31, 2015, by § 223,118,687 (net
position), Of this amount, $ 19,255 868 {unrestricted net position) may be used o meet the
government's ongoing obligations to citizens and credifors.

s The City's tofal net position increased by a net amount of $7,513,253. Net investment in capital
assets increased by $1,447,175, while unrestricted net position increased by $6,381,379 and
restricted net position decreased by $325,301. The increase in investment in capital assets was
related 1o capital asset additions offset by debt payments, net of unspent bond proceeds and
accumulated depreciafion. The unrestricted increase was mﬂtféy due to the net pension assel
recorded with the adoption of GABRB 68. The restricted deenease was due to use of deveiopment
revernues. g:;%‘“’

« The City's governmenial funds reporieﬁﬂ" ‘a5 Qﬁl‘si}?ecember 31, 2015, combined ending fund

. halances of $ 21,194,223, an inc gase Bf % @‘3 566 from the prior year. This was caused by the
repayment of $2,575,000 mtez{iiia d A

s+ The Nonspendable fungégarances yiere ﬁ%‘g;ﬁ. ig, 532?;5‘ decrease of $37,439 due a reduction of
Prepaids and fuel iniféiaféry é‘*

+ The restricted fund Bal ap&iesfﬁn @ta!%vag%iﬁ&? 917, an increase of § 494,348, which was the
result of TiD values m%eas;i gﬁo‘m Ie yment of inferfund advances.

» The assigned fund baiaﬂce ﬁln t%tgi éf $ 5,053,715 had an increase of $ 146,986 related fo capital
projects. %{}w

« The unassigned fund baiance as of December 31, 2015 for the general fund was $6,662,986 or
approximately 25 percent of total anticipaied 2018 generai fund expenditures.

« The City's Governmental activities debt decreased by $615,000 from scheduled repayments. See
table 11 for compiete debt repayment details.

+« The City's Business type aclivities completed the Water & Waste Water Building, & $3 million
project.

M

2’ KW

Qverview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis are intended 1o serve as an introduction to the City's basic financial
statements. These basic financial stalemenis are comprised of three componerits1} government-wide
financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes o the financial statements. This report
also contains ofher supplementary information in addition {o the basic financial statements
themselves.
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Governmeni-wide financial statementis

The government-wide financial statements are dasigned o provide readers with a broad overview of
the City's finances, in @ manner similar to a private-sector business. The statement of net position
presents information on all of the Cily's assets, deferred outflows, liabilities and deferred inflows, with
the difference between the calegories reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in
niet position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the Cify is improving or
deteriorating. Table 1 provides a ten year history of Net Position.

The siatement of activities presents information showing how the government’s net position changed
during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reporied as soon as the underlying
event giving rise to the change ocours, regardiess of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenue
and expenditures are reporied in this statement for some items that will result in cash flows in future
fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxss and earned but unused vacation and sick leave). Table 2
provides & ten year history of the statement of aclivities.

The govemment-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the Cily that are principally
supported by taxes and infergovernmental revenue {(governmental activities) from other functions that
are intended to recover all or a significant porfion of their costs through user fees and charges
{business-like activities). The governmental aclivities of the City include general government, public
safety, public works, health & human services, culture & recreation and conservation & development,
The business-type activities include the Franklin Water Utility and the Sanifary Sewer fund.

The government-wide financial statements include not oniyst[aeg’étty fiself {known as the pfimary
government) but also a legally separate Com umty D@f‘“logment Authority for which the City is
finantially accouniable. Financial mformattp fﬁe‘r hzs énded component unit is reported as part of the
financial information presented for the pm@ gey@; nent itself.

(GH
The government-wide financial sta;emergtgﬁ@ﬁ bqﬁé}md ozaséxhsblts A and B of this report.

f,gj«ﬁ @‘i ‘{f‘@
A0 o i‘“’
%‘ kS ‘? r’l%.z
A fund is a grouping of reiafgé agc@ﬂrﬁs th i%s used to maintain control over resources that have been
segregated for specific actwiﬁéaﬁ i o gevetwes The City, like other state and local governments, uses
fund accounting to ensure an on"étrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of
the funds of the City can be dﬁﬁ d into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds and

fiduciary funds.

Fund financial sta{eméifs“

Governmental funds

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental
activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, uniike government-wide financial
statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near term inflows and outflows of
spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal
year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government's near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the govermnment-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements, By
doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government's nearderm
financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement
of revenue, expenditures and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this
comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

The City maintains 16 individual governmentat funds. information is presented separately in the
governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenue, expenditures,
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and changes in fund balances for the General, Debt Service and TiF Districts Funds, that are
considered to be major funds. Data from the remaining 13 governmental funds are combined into a
single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these nonmajor governmental funds
is provided in the form of combining siatements later in this report.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on Exhibits C, D, E and F of this
report. These statements include a budgetary comparison of the General Fund.

The City adopts an annual appropriaied budget for its General Fund, Debt Service Fund, Library
Operating Fund, Solid Waste Fund, Capital Outlay Fund, Equipment Replacement Fund, Strest
Improvement Fund, Capital Improvement Fund, Development Fund, Sanitary Sewer Fund and the
Frankiin Water Utility. A budgetary comparison statement has been provided for all governmental
funds demonstrating compliance with their budgets.

Proprietary funds

Proprietary funds are used 1o report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the
governmeni-wide financial statements. Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the
government-wide financial statements, only in more detail. The propristary fund financial siatements
provide separate information for the Franklin Water Utility, the Sanitary Sewer Fund and the Internal
Service Fund. i

il

The proprietary fund financial statements can be found on E@g}s G H & | of this report.
fﬁ‘“z ﬁm&

Rt
Pra e *s_a”“’}

Fiduciary funds are used to a l% fg?{fg‘éourg@ held«for the bensfit of parties oulside the
government. Fiduciary fundst r’é ho ;é?ieote&d Wiﬁe g@‘efnment—w;de financial statement because
the resources of those fune (‘ ,,} { ag@;@bm Qs ‘;50;‘1 the City's programs. The fiduciary funds
maintained by the Cily are %peﬂy%{ﬂéx ﬁﬁy Fund, that records the tax roll and tax collections
for the City and other taxfza?dq ;ur@s@:%ti%n% n‘o%her agency fund to record that activity and a post-
employment benefits trust t%h@ f{ﬁds intil needed to pay designated health benefits for eligible
cutrent and future retirees. \%{}g

Fiduciary funds

The basic fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on Exhibit J & K of this report.
Notes to the financial statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided
in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes fo the financial statements are found
ch pages 39 — 83 of this report.

Qther information

in addition o the basic financial statements, noles and accompanying notes, this report also presents
certain required supplementary information concerning the City of Franklin’s progress in funding its
retiree health obligations o eligible full time employees and its participation in the Wisconsin
Retirement System and City of Franklin Public Works Employees’ Pension Plans, Required
supplementary information can be found on pages 84-88 of this report.
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The combining and individual fund financial statements and schedules section presents combining
statements in connection with non-major governmental funds, a delailed budgetary comparison
schedule for the General Fund io demonstrate compliance with the budgst complementing the
statement inciuded in the basic governmental fund financial statements, and other information related
o the individual funds are presented immediately following the reguired supplementary information.
Schedules 1 to 12.2 can be found on pages §9-108 of this report.

Governmeni-wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's financial
position. in the case of the City, assels exceeded liabilities by $223,118,693 and $215,605,434 at the
end of 2015 and 2014, respectively.

CITY OF FRANKLIN NET POSITION
December 31, 2015 and 2014

Govammental Business-type
Activities Achivities Total
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
Current and
other assels 5 56138443 § 27388262 0§ 2078362 & 5.1 44 w7 % 5RZ214 805 & 32,533,028
t.ong term Note Ree $ - 3 - 25.3711,800 fvﬁﬁéﬁ@‘ﬁégﬁ 25,311,800 28,055 931
Capital assets 115,500,274 114,684 684 90084028 -~ ‘v&é,ﬁﬁ?,?ﬁ? 205 588,200 203 451 941
Total assets 171,643,717 142 272 046 < #4117 &?2»238’—@% 118. 767,955 289 116,005 282 040,801
‘5{ g,?k 5
Defarred Cutflows 2 843 438 &&fﬁ? {:}%v %2336 380 - 3128786 163,578
Current liabilities 5,075 5.33 igﬁi 3 Tﬁ. S‘i”* ({-9%?48 819;;,5533 3,230,972 9,324,372 7,012,033
t ong-term liabilifies 12 5‘34«??2 53;}’8’? 60@ "‘z (s 23 840,538 34,093 631 37,422 144
Total Hiabifitias 1§ 302575 g:ﬁt‘?(? ﬁ}ww gsjéw 128 26,871,510 44,317,402 44 435077
Defared Inflows 24 8@9 Zﬁ‘l Q}‘Yfi‘%d é@ﬁ @%{} - - 24 808 701 24,414,281
Net position: g}‘@ i% 3 {}
Net investment in éﬁ )
capital assels 107,184 ,6{}3‘* 106,031,877 58,861,708 88 567,257 186,046,308 194,569,134
Restricted 7,480,603 7,828,452 356,106 313,558 7,818,708 8,142,010
iInresiricted 16,401,041 8,848 660 2,853,728 4,015,830 19,265 669 12,864,260

Total ret position $ 131047147 § 122708980 $ O2071540 § 02300445 § 223118687 § 2Z15.605.434

The largest portion of the City's net posifion (approximately 88 and 30 percent, in 2015 and 2014,
respectively) reflects its investment in capitat assets (e.g., land, buildings, machinery, and equipment);
less any related debt used to acquire those assets thai is still culstanding. The City uses these capital
asseis fo provide services to citizens; consequently, net position is not available for future spending.
Although the City's investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted
thet the resources needed to tepay this debt must be provided from other sources, since capital
assels themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.
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Invesiment in capital assets accounted for $196,046,309 and $194,588,134 in 2015 and 2014,
respectively of the vear end net position. The changes in capital assets were as follows:

Neti Change Net
Capital Asset in Capital increase
Additions Depreciation Related Debt  (Decrease)
2015 $ 7162243 §  (b,024,884) $ (6890,184) $ 1447175
2014 4,715,188 (4,827.,939) 894,721 781,970

2015 major projects were the $3 miliion Water & Waste Water buiiding, $1 million of preliminary work
on Kayia’s Playground, and the South 27" improvement project to bury overhead utilities ($1.4
milfion).

The major 20114 City projecis were Pleasant View neighborhood park access and improvements, a
water main extension on West Si. Marfin's Road, a snow plow and a police dispatch center.

Capital Assets confributed to the governmental activities included land dedicated io Parks, playground
eguipment for the Kayla's Krew playground and office furniture and equipment totaling $680,818 in
2015 and $284,894 in 2014,

Capital assels contributed to the business-type activities were 3}}@6 251 in 2015 and $317,738 in
2014. g?(}& :

,w%
An additional pertion of the Cily's net ;303{{3;3 (35@@ and 3.8% in 2015 and 2014, respectively)
represent resources that are sub;ect m»‘aﬁ%maﬁ}eﬁrtcﬂons on how they may be used. There were
$7.816,709 and $8,142,010 resgpmvely éﬁﬁhose@ei pcg?:tlons that were restricted to specific
purposes. ﬁ{, Mgg X (i \ {;

o
E Vi w {
The 2015 decrease of 3325,351%% r s jete g f}}os;tion reported is due o the use of Development
fund for park devel opmen% MUSEYT 4 .
o ‘o 08

Py
The 2014 decrease of $524, 334«2?‘1 ‘restricted net position reported is due o transfers {c the Enterprise

funds from the Development fund

)

The remaining balance in unrestricted net position of $19,255,669 and $12,864,290 in 2015 and
2014, respectively, may be used to meet the City's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. At
the end of the current and prior fiscal years the City reported pusitive balances in the unrestricted net
position for both the governmental and for its business-type activities. The $6,391,379 increase in
2015 Unresiricted net position was the result of the adoption of GASB 68 which resufted in the
recording a $2.1 million nef pension asset, $3.0 million deferred outflow of resources, and a $1.1
milllion net pension liability and the repayment of inter-fund advances.

The 2014 $4,956,744 increase in Unrestricted net position was the result of retirement of non-capital
debt.
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Government-wide activities
The detaiis of changes in net position foliow

City of Frankiin Changes in Net Position
For the Years Ending December 31, 2015 and 2014
Govemnmenia! Business-fype
Adlivities Aclivitias Tolat
2015 2014 2045 2014 2015 2014

Revenue
Program revenue:

Charges for services § 5H06707T § 4237857 5 BO50310 $ BO8BEI6 S 14847047 § 12976483

Oparating grants & contributions 1,809,520 1,801,262 - 1,800,520 1,801,262

Capital grants & conlributions 1,144 757 1437 54 566,251 238,557 1,741,008 1,676,081
(Genesal revenus:

Property taxes 23,310,724 24 200 854 - 23312724 24 200,584

Other taxes 785,195 728,774 - 785,195 726,774

Intergovernmental 1,804,045 1,510,848 - 4 B04 546 1,510,848

investment eamings 411,850 865,541 503,178 842,207 1,004,778 4,337,768

Other 81791 80158 73601 50878 135362 111,036

Totel revenue 35,026,380 34,779,858 10,183,260 884278 45 209 679 44,400,136

Expenses:

General government 2,960,355 2319548 - 3 - 2,990 355 2,916,640

Public safety 16959091 16,194,631 o~ ;‘; - 16,859,091 16,194,631
- Public works 5,304,583 7,231,238 RS A - 8,304,583 7,231,238

Health & hurman services 726,000 673332 ﬂ{:’;i’? - - 726,000 673,332

Culture & recreation 1,969,267 ‘332 57 - - 1,060,207 1,865,832

Conservation & development 576,421 ,ﬁt{% 459 : jﬁj . . 576,421 450,994

irderest on long-tenm dahi 322 & - - 405 027 582,211

Water i} LA %‘w 5, 766008 5077744 5 756,068 5,077 744

Sower - (e ST afdeann 4,180,946 4,148 430 4 180,045

Total expenses w\ 3‘ - 33%@ ‘5&9%?’955 LAPB014508 9260500 41845277 __ 39185758

increase in net position o r »,ﬁ & 5‘”

bafore ransfers %« £p ‘f"‘;gza *5%52 793 268,782 361,588 3,354,402 5214378
Transfers mn »ﬁa&ﬁ 459% 1144601 {1,044 459 144 80t . -
Change in net position "“‘“"‘"’ 4140478 © 4708189 {73677 506,189 3,384 402 5214 378
Net position - beginning a@i}iﬁa 985 148,000,800 07806445 52390258 215805434 21030105
Restatement - pension 4 4188979 - (43 328) - 4.148 851 -
Nat position - baginning {restated) 126,807,068  115.000,800 92 847,217 92380758 218754285 21030105
Net position - ending $ 131047447 5 122708989 3 02071540 § 02AGB445  $ 223118837 $ 215605434

2015 Govemmental activities increased the City's net posifion by $4,140,078 or 123% of the total

growth in the net position. Elements of this increase are:
+ A $1,724,138 increase in the TID position

+ Anincrease from repayment of $3,725,000 inter-fund advances

Governmental activities in 2014 increased the City's net position by $4,708,188 or 90% of the total

growth in the net position. Elements of this increase are:

A $808,184 surplus in General Government activity

An increase from Debt Service of $2,439,380

Net increase from internal service activities of $333,710
Nst decrease in development aclivities of $734,488

-« * @
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Expenses by Function - Governmental Activities

$16.000,000 -
316,000,000
$14 000,000 -
$12,000,000 -
$10,000,000 -
$8.000.000 -
$6,000,000
34,000,000 4
$2,000,000
General i , aith an Cuflure ang | ~OTEEVEIOD L yolarest on
govamment | T uoicsalety | Public works buman recreation and ksng-term debt
il services development
! §2,900355 | 16,959.001 8,304 533 726,000 1,650 207 576,421 405,022
f%\g
f"“‘*s.m 5
Revenue by Source - Govemgg vnt;i]} Activities
- ”fi H
)
Crigrdeb
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5%
Intarest 8 Other
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coniributions
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Business-type activities
in 2015, business-type activities decreased the City’s net position by $775,677 or -2_3%. Amortization

of regulatory assets increased operating expense in the current vear.

in 2014, business-type activities increased the City's net position by $506,189 or 10%. The key
elements of this increase were contributions from developers.

The following graph compares the 2015 charges for services to the operating expenses for water and
sewer activilies.

Operating Revenue and Expanse - Business-type Activities

a—”g“
e w B o oy d’%‘e 3 ﬂf}k‘
14 Al L™
Water and Sewer exp g *ef\iceec{“" {_revenue. ;efhe fo the cument policy of including only

depreciation from Cily éﬁendxn@ on gaﬁﬁai ats in the rate formula. The large amount of new
infrastructure that has bea{f Yhstal i@éﬂ re er years is the reason for this policy. When maintenance
and replacement costs mcrease{«ﬁ?is g} oy may need to be reevaluated.

ol

s

el
fo
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As shown on the following chart, the Business-type revenue includes capital grants and coniributions,
investment earnings and miscellanecus income in addition to charges for services (operating
revenue).

Revenue by Source - Business-type Activities

Interest & Other
Capital granis & 7%
contributions -Waler
5% .
Charges for services -
Walar

B5%

Charges for services -
Sewer
33%

Tt &‘“ oY

Financial A fthe G it's F. ﬁ‘{i%
nalysis of the overgmé}t At Qx.} * wf @g}
As noted earlier, the C;yﬁugesafun@@ccourgm’ig i}‘ : g” and demonstrate compliance with finance -

related legal requirements.” § s
o v A 35,%‘ @%iz
T T e
Governmental Funds %@’,}z - G

The focus of the City's gover ;ghtai funds is o provide informalion on near-term inflows, oulfiows,
and balances of spendabie resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City's financing
requirements. in particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a
government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year,

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the City's governmental funds reported combined ending fund
balarices of $21,194,223, an increase of $3,163,566 from the prior year. At year end the unassigned
fund balance was $8,512,058. Of this tolal $6,662,986 was for general fund activities. This amount
was offset by deficis in the TIF Districis and Nonmajor Governmental Funds. The TIF Districts have
inferfund loans with favorable financing and will diminish as revenue is received and used o repay the
financing.

The City has assigned fund balances for activities of the Capital Projects of $4,906,585. In addition,
$147.121 of General Fund Balance has been assighed for encumbrances inio 20186.
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Cutside party restrictions have resulied in restricted fund halances:
1) to pay debt service -$507,283,
2} for utility improvements - $807,003,
3) for development purposes - $3,851,853,
4} for TIF Districts of $896,460,
5} for iibrary services $523,237and
6) for donations, health, grant funds, solid waste and recreafional aclivities — totaling
$602,281.

The City alsc has nonspendable fund balances fo indicate that it is not available for new spending
because i has already been commitled for prepaid expenses and inventories ($41,818) and for
advances fo other funds ($2,198,516)}. The advances are scheduled for repayment in 2017.

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City. As of December 31, 2015, the fotal fund
balance of the general fund was $9,049 808 of which $6,662,886 was unassigned. This unassigned
fund balance represents approximately 26% of 2016 general fund budgeted expenditures.

The total fund balance of the General Fund increased by $418,757 during fiscal year 2015, 2015
Expendifures exceeded revenues by $53,663, a one-time exempt computer aid boosted
intergovernmental revenues by $244,000, while a lack of large building project reduced Building
Permit revenues. Reduced oil prices drove fuel costs lower than expected, and a mild winter reduced
road salt needs. §574,000 Transfers out to the Capital funds in%eaf%d costs compared fo 2014.

The Debt Service Fund has a fotal fund ba¥ance of 3?&,'75283 restricted for the payment of debt
service. The fund balance increase of $932§8é?§ re ate?ft‘o the repayment of interfund advances.
w 5
The TIF Districts Fund has totaifmﬁa%hafame of $§f§8 24453!16 a restricted fund of $996 460 and &
deficit fund balance of $138 2&6{; ated imﬁteﬁgjﬁa‘*advsgg&s"
ey {;{'j S {:g% -‘,‘

The Nonmajor Govemmeni f@&nds have @ icfél*‘fund balance of $10,778,787. The fund balance
increase of $90,627 camé&-pri ipalty from fbe’“"iz’ansfer in from the General Fund and collections of
Utility Special Assessments. gn vma;\oa' ?ﬁmd balances relate to future development and capital project
fund balances. X

%ﬁf"

%
The City's Proprietary Funds provide the same fype of information found in the government-wide
financial statemenis, but in more detail.

Unrestricted net position of the Water Utility at the end of the year amounted to $1,672,024, an
increase of $207,301 from the prior year.

Urnirestricted net position of the Sanitary Sewer Fund at the end of the year amounted to $1,181,704,
a decrease of $1,369,203 from the prior vear.

The enterprise funds financial statements can be found on Exhibits G, H and | of this report.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Revenue exceeded the budget by $193,261. Exempt Computer Aid revenues exceeded budget by
$245,000 on a temporary placement of equipment in the City. Building permit revenues were below
budget by $187.000 due to the lack of any major projects.

Actual expenditures were less than budgeted expenditures by $1,990,856. The largest favorable
variances wers in General Government and Public Works. The City established a $950,800 restricied
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contingency reserve o preserve shared revenue from the Stafe. That contingency was not needed.
Reductions in off prices and a warm winter reduced the need for road sait, both reducing Public Works
costs,

A %476 946 surpius compares favorsbly o the originally budgeted $1,450,000 deficil. Reduced
axpenditures are the driver behind these resuits.

Capital assels

The City's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business type activities as of
December 31, 2015, amounts fo $205,588,710 net of accumulated depreciation. This investment in
capital asseis includes iand, buildings, improvements other than buildings and machinery and
equipment.

City of Frankiin's investment in Capital Assets

Sovernmental Business-type
Activities Activifies Total
2015 2014 2015 2014 2018 2014

Land $ 25268681 § 24548831 % 521225 § 521 225§ 25788,916 § 26470856
Buildings and {“ ‘*g 1

Improvements 24,880,902 24 717 845 6.646,943 8,434,412 31527845 28,152,257
improvements é A5 -

other fhan bulidings 95,141,359 93,860 ?3&@ éﬁéwﬁéﬁ? 110,447,888 204,091,166 204,308,776

141, 3,158 C : 447, L9t 308,

Machinery and Wil o §

and squipment ?8,137,992 ﬁ 514 ng‘f‘ K &2@,5,978 {1 2,594,341 23,434,570 20,208,938
Construttion i .. z{;@’“

in process 1480, §§§ i @%%23 3‘{ 3 Jf: (4 J#EMSI@ 351,810 1,221,387 774,523

Total capital asssta 164, 563, SgE Y 16%{&% ?%zgrgzé ABE437 117,449,578 288,065,284 278,916,750
Less Accumuiated % %j .. @V E\ :

depreciation (49,104.573 Ké@é?: 13,490} {31,371,411) _ {28.R82.31%) {80,475,984) (75,463,809}

§ £y
Capitaf assets net of %“‘M
depraciation § 115505374 5 114BB46B4 $ 00084038 § 88567257 § 205585300 3 203451941

The total increase in the City's net investment in capital asseis net of depreciation for the current
fiscal year was $2,137,35%2 or 1.1%

For further details on capital asset activity refer to Note 1(D)5 and Note 4{D) of the Notes to Financial
Statements and Schedules 12 - 12.2.

Long-term debt

State statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt a governmental entity may issue up fo 5
percent of its total equalized valuation. At December 31, 2015, the City had general obligation note
and bond issues outstanding tolaling $35,812,276. The current legal debt limitation for the City is
$182,458,295. The City's current outstanding general obligation debt is 20% of the statulory debt
fimit. in the last 15 years the City has not exceeded 29% of the statutory debt limil.

By City policy, ouistanding general obligation debt is fimited to 2% of {olal equslized value or

$72,983,718. Quistanding debt represents 48% of this inlernal limit, leaving an internal debt fimit
margin of $37,071,441.
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The City's present rating from Moody's for its general obligation debt is "Aa1™

In December 2814, a new $5,320,000 ten yvear debt issue was sold. TIF District #3 soid $3,330,000
for infrastructure costs on the 27" Street proiect, while the City will use $1,980,000 for Capital
improvement projects. The Franklin Water Utllity borrowed $1,250,000 on a 20 year bond {o finance
construction of the Water & Waste Water Building. The utilily’s plan is {o make fufure infrastructure
improvements including water main replacement and new water service from current reserves and
from City collected impact fees.

in Aprit 2018, the City refunded the 2007 bonds with a notional value of $5,8695.000. The interest rate
dropped from 3.8% fo 2.0%.

in January, 2012, the Franklin Sewer Fund signed a Clean Water Fund Nole with a notional amount
of $27,562,754 to fund the construction of a sewer inierceptor in the City. The note had a balance of
$22,357,277 af December 31, 2015. The Notes have a 20 year repayment schedule to May, 2031.
The City has an intergovernmental agreement with another government o pay the Cily the required
interest and principal with payments on the Clean Water Fund loan beginning in 2015,

City of F%ankiin’s Ouistanding Debt {All purposes)

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities 4] Total
=S A 3
2015 2014 2015 " {2074 2015 214
General obligation ) m%fé‘“?
Bonds § 7085000 § 78150000 ’$ 23 5@2}275 $ 24776522 § 30687276 § 32391522
Notes 5,225,000 5,32@%{1‘8& - 5225500 5.320.000
't 4‘; ‘ﬁ
Tota! § 12,320,000% § 12,335{@50»% ﬁ$§2§3g§2 2?8 @%5 24776522 § 358122718 § 37711522
Additional information of fﬁe C; f%%tfn%e eb&gaﬁbe found in note 4(F), Schedule 5 and Tables
11 ~ 13 in the statistical sg;ahen of me portf}f
1{‘“ 1 -F
Other Changes of 3rgnific&‘r§é’e ;%%;w %:}
+50

Post Employment Health Care Benefits

The City of Frankiin provides retiree heaith care benefils to certain retiree groups from the dafe of
refirement until age 65. Prior to 2008 the City's portion of health care cost was recognized as an
expenditure in the period premiums were paid. Funding for those costs was provided out of the
current operating budget of the City, This was referred {0 as financing on a pay as you go basis.

The Government Accounting Standards Board {GASB) issued Statement #45 effective for the City of
Franklin on January 1, 2008 that said thatl the expense of these benefits has {o be recognized over
the warking lives of the employees. The Common Council concluded that the Clty of Franklin should
not only recognize the expense on its financial statements buf should fund those amounts out of its
general revenue starling in 2008 with the establishment of a section 115 trust. The actuarial computed
annual required coniribution under GASB #45 for 2015 was $324,393 and for 2014 was $551,716.
The City prepaid $151,058 when the ARC unexpectedly declined more than expected.

More detsiled information can be found in foothote 5C.
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Economic Factors, Tax Rates and Next Year's Budgsetls

« The unemployment rate as of December 31, 2015 for the City was 4.0% and Mitlwaukee County
which includes the City, was 5.2%. This compares with an unemployment rate of 4.3% for the
State of Wisconsin,

The iocal {ax rate decreased 0.3% for operations for the current and in the prior two years
changed (0.2}, and (0.3)%, respectively. The tax levy was un-changed the past three years

Reguests for Information

This financial report is designed {o provide a general overview of the City's finances for those with an
interest in the government's finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this
report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the Director of Finance &
Treasurer, City of Frankiin 9228 West Loomis Road, Franklin, Wi 53132,

General information or more detailed financial and budget information relating fo the City of Franklin
can be found at the City's website, www franklinwi.gov - Finance Department tab.
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Exhibit A
CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
Statement of Net Fosition
December 31, 2015

Govemnmental Business-type
Activities Activities Tolal
ABBETS
LCash and invesiments % 241544685 § 8283684 $ 24 982 829
Receivables, net
Accoumts receivable 848234 2453 201 3,302,435
Tares recoivable 25089277 291,685 25,360,062
Special assessments receivabie 1,268,346 - 1,288 346
internal bajances 98 221 {88,221 4
Due from oiher governments 156,313 - 156,313
Prepaid itemns f3,864 6,148 a0,012
Inventories 16,552 - 15,852
{ ong ferm advances 2,198,618 {2,'198,616) -
Resiricied cash and investments - 358,106 356,106
Due from other governments - long term - 25,311,500 25311860
Regulatory asset - 434 057 £34 D57
Reslricied pension asset - WRE 2066135 - 2066135
Net OPES asset 146,420 4638 151,058
Capital assels {net of accumulated deprctation)
tand 26,268,691 521,225 25,788,916
Buildings and improvements 15,288,651 5,345 440 20,634,100
Machinery and equpment 6,812,142 1,787,284 8,609,436
Improvements other than buiidings G6,954 687 {Bg g?’9,5?4 140,334,461
Construction in progress 1,180,903 %&} P "40.484 4,221,387
Total agssets 171643, 73753 117,472,288 269,118.005
Lot n 07
DEFERRED CUTFLOWS OF REBOURCES 1357 vy a;g_g«
Unamortized refunding costs S A ¥ 21419 - 121,419
Pension resources FET Ao 221987 A 286,360 3,008,367
Total defarred outﬂ%\@iﬁ fesau;q?%ﬁ;y . ‘:f“ ‘%MB?&?@V 286,380 3,420,786
R A v T3 AR
LIABILITIES ‘gﬁ - (1A, Sy ¢ ol
Accounis payeble e i‘}i "A " -f‘iw K ﬁ@ ¥ 2,008,550 1428,134 3,627 B84
Actruad fiabiities “{ : ,N‘f%%;;} “t £ 5 1,611,790 63,665 1,075,455
Due lo other govemments o~ %3}'”} 5 3,281 - 3,281
Accrued interest 2 x50 135,066 103,301 239,267
Special deposits ;%%r;’} % 141,250 - 141,250
Pension obligation - DPW 3 733,718 377,974 1,111,650
Noncurrerd Habifities
Due within one yeer 2,661,386 1275745 3,857 131
Bue in more than ons year 11,823,336 22438308 34,261,645
Total liabilifies 18,630,275 25,687 128 44 317 403
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Subsequent year property iaxes 24,809,781 - 24 808,701
NET POSITION
Net investinent m capial assets 107,184,603 BR.861.706 198,046,308
Restricted for
Diebt sarvice 482,773 - 482,773
Utility improvements 1,800 756 - 1,860,758
Development 3,851,653 - 3,851,852
Library 524 137 - 524 137
Solid Wasle 260,844 - 260,644
Recreation senvices A7 858 - A7.G58
Health 160,003 - 160,003
Donalions 133,678 - 133 678
Sewer squipment replacement - 356,106 356,106
Linrasticled 16,401,941 2853728 19,255,668
Total net position $§ 131047147 § W2071540 § 223,118,887

See accompanying notes 1o the financial statements.
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Exhibit 8

CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN

Statermant of Activifies
Year Ended December 31, 2018
Program Revenus Het (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Posftion
Operating Capitat
Chargesfor  Grantsand  Grants and Governmergal Business-fype
Functions/Progtams Expenses Services  Gondribulions Coniributions Activities Activities Tolat
Governmenial seivifies:
GGenerat goveryment $ 2580355 $ IR % - 5 15540 H (2524808 % - 5 {2,824 028}
Fublic salety 18,958,091 2,362,178 310,522 77,903 {14,208, 498) - (14,208,490}
Public works £,304,583 2,719,888 1,286,577 280,875 {4,017,443) - 14,017,443}
Heaith and human services 726,000 154,674 53,337 1,448 {506,549) - (508,549}
Cutture and recreation 1,968,297 146,554 159,084 767,313 ol {896,308) - (896,306}
Conservation and development 676,421 152,588 - 1 Baﬁ‘ S {421,947} - {421,947}
interest on long term debt 405,622 - YL {4065 822) - {4056 027y
Total governmenta activities 31.530.768 §.696,707 1,809 528 1;153#-,?5? {23,279,785) - (23.279.785)
AT T e
Business-type acivifies: L (g Wiy
waler 5756088 560980 o ¥ 541,420 . 385,268 385,260
Sewer 4,148.420 ﬂﬁ@émz aalat” 2 oamn - {783,207} {783,207}
Total business-type gctvities 9,514 508 ‘& 950 IS o o . /566251 - {357 547} (307 9473
Total primary government 5 41545 2?; X 2 5 wsém’ﬁ 54 @ 5265 1,711,008 (23279, 785} {397 947} (I3 B77.732%
General rovenue. {/J ; "‘:{;“' pe

Froperty tawes levied fn{gﬁ@é;ﬁ! pﬁmﬁm 19,022,067 - 19,022,087
Property taxes levied fopdebt sopipe’ 1,600,000 - 1,600,800
Property iaxes levied fnr‘nsﬁismm 2,500,837 - 2,690 657
Ohher fawes 786,150 - 786,195
infergovemnmentat revenue nm resiricted lo Spachic programs 1,804,845 - 1,804 045
investment eamings 411,850 593,128 1,004,778
Iiscefiancous revenue 48 685 735M 122 286
Gain on sale of capial assels 13,106 - 13,106
Transiers 1044 453 {1,044 455} -
“fotal general revenue and ransfers 21419864 (377,730} 27,042,134
Change in nef posiiion 4,140,879 {7I5617T) 3,364 402
Net position - beginning 422 708,989 92,896,445 245,605.434
Restaiement - pension 4,198,978 45,228} 4,148,851
Net pustlion - beginning {reslated) 426,907,088 92 847,217 219,754 285
Net posifion - ending $ 131 Qé?’,‘ld? § o075t & D03 448587

See accompanying notes ¢ he Hinancial statements,
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WiSCONSIN
Balance Shoet
Gevernmental Funds
December 31, 20186

Exhibi

Nonmajor Total
Debt TIF Governmental  Governmental
{zeneral Servive Districts Funds Funds
ASBSETS
Cash and investmenis § 7386259 $ 474044 B 2752483 § 10854011 § 21,567,397
Receivablas
Accounts receivahie 775,854 - 44 061 28127 840 042
Taxas receivable 16,358,185 1,532,330 3,020,351 4,157 402 25 069277
Spetial assessments recelvable - 111,456 - 1,187 890 1,288 246
Due from other funds 71,384 - - 131,188 202,582
Due from other governments 71,352 - - 84 481 158,313
Prepaid items 25834 - - 730 28,364
inveniories 16552 - - - 15,552
Advances fo other mds 2,198,618 - - 850600 3,048 616
TOTAL ASSETS $ 28803836 § 2118738 § 5816580 § 17395310 52234 480
LIABH_ITIES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABHITIES
Accounts payable % 569,150 % - 8 - & 1,530,022 2,009,172
Accrued liabilities F17,854 - - 23,436 741,200
Bue fo other funds 1,809 - - 14,552 143,361
Due o other governments 2875 - - ‘:‘% 408 3,281
Special deposits 1471 250 - RV - 141,250
Advance fom other funds - - a8 1,038,000 - 1,938,000
Total liahiifies 16228938 v L5554 838 00D 1565416 5,026,354
ZLAPRRE
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES sy S
Uneamed & unavailable revenue 18830889 % ¢ 16144506 3000351 5051116 26013912
N LR ol
FUND BALANCES {DEFICIT) BT > ﬁ%ﬁ% v ;@é
Nonspendable: i:‘a e @g«gsj A @{ﬁ%
Inventories and prepaid items 4 RV %gi@ﬁ - - - 730 41,916
Advances to olher funds o8 T, absbie E - - - 2,198,616
Restrictod: b w0 ot
Debt service Sl 3 v 507,263 - - 507,283
Utility imyrovemenis - !g* i - - - 907 003 867 003
Devslopmant 230 - - 3,851,663 3,851,653
TIF Districts 5 - § 496 460 ! 506,460
Donations - - - 133,678 133,678
Health services - - - 163,003 160,003
Libraty services - - - 523237 523,237
Sokd waste - - - 260,044 260,944
Recreational services - - - 47 656 AT 856
Assigned:
Purchases on order 147,121 147 121
Capital projecis - - - 4,906,504 4,908 504
Unassigned {deficit} 5,662 428 - {138,216} {12 711} §.512 058
Total fund balances (defici) G 049 008 507,283 858,244 1,778,787 21.184 233
TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS,
AND FUND BALANCES {DEFICIT) 3 25003838 B 2118738 § 5816505 § 17.305316 § 52,234 ABG

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Exhibit C.1
CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
Reconcitiation of the Balance Sheet of Governmental Funds
fo the Statement of Net Position
December 31, 2015

Fund balances - total governmenta! funds $ 24,164,223

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement
of net position are different because:

Certain assets used in govemment activittes are not fi naracsaé resources and
are therefore are not reporied in the funds

Capital assets, net of depreciation 115,505,274
Restricted pension asset - WRS 2,066,135
Net OPEB asset 146,420

Some receivables that are not currently available are reported as
deferred inflows of resources in the fund financial statements
but are recognized as revenues when earned in the government-wide
statements

Special assessments {f}%«;:g 1,204,211
Deferred outflows of resources related to pensjaps are aaﬁﬁ?‘ab e to future
pericds and, therefore, are note repoﬁed{qﬁund s;a;;e shietns 2,721,987
Internal Service Fund net posahog;{%i“ f“: & 4 3,461,882
a"'%ew’% A
Long-ternt fiabiliies ap eé“b’ié éf % ty si¢ vermpeﬁ*’taf”actmtfes are not
due and payable int cua‘re er;czd &n ] ace gﬁémg y, are not reported
as fund liahilities. interésibn Ic jierm d 6 not accrued in
governmental funds, but nathws recégﬁzed as an expenditure when dus
General obligation debt +* 5 iy {12,523,902)
Compensated absences 130" (1,980,820)
Unamortized refunding costs 121,419
Accrued interest {135,066)
Pension obligation - DPW . {733,718)
Net position of governmental activities $_131.047.147

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN

Statement of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Governmental Funds
Year Ended December 31, 2015

Exhibit D

Nonmajor Total
Debt TIF Governmental Governmental
General Service Districts Funds Funds
REVENUE
Taxes $17.015261 $ 1,600,000 $ 2782658 & 2,700,000 $ 24087918
intergovernmental revenue 2,775,349 - 441,341 273,347 3,480,037
Licenses and permits 888,387 - - 37.610 706,977
Fines, forfeitures and penalties 484,957 - - - 484,957
Public charges for services 1,544,611 - - 2,520,723 4065334
Special ussessments . 47 683 - 594,673 642,258
intergovernmental charges for services 182,188 - - - 182,188
Investment earnings 238,662 12,500 7.830 167,126 426,018
Miscellaneous revenus 155,576 - 138,885 125,003 418,464
Total revenue 23,075,871 1,680,183 3,370,714 6,418,382 34,525,150
EXPENDITURES
Current
General government 2720473 - 52,921 10,351 2783745
Public safety 15,883,174 - ge,é*‘-g - 23,013 16,006,187
Public works 3,048,358 - " {3 313 1,540,457 4,587 108
Health and human services 633,387 ,4@”22? 82,782 716,168
Culture, recreation and education 177,798 g% ‘3 )}g‘l - 1428,229 1,608,027
Conservation and development 56&@%% gﬁ . - 568,364
Capital outiay . ﬁ{}%fwf ~ “? - 1,428,842 3,688,104 5,007,046
Debt service %%’; LRSS &
Principal o ° o @,jg é%s o0e &~ 20,000 - 615,000
nterest SR eV V70 ,15%57‘5 144,400 - 480,072
. TR ‘ékm Ly | AT i )
Debt issuance costs )3 ¢ : e
Total expenditures %{}‘* \{“ ;a@,jsgé‘ 534?5?? 810,872 1,845?5?6 5,752,838 32438718
¥ Yo
Excess {deficlency) of ravenue ‘;‘j}%" Y 205 ﬁ
over expenditures . %{%i (53 683} 749,511 1,724,138 (334 554} 2,085,432
OTHER FINANCING S50URCES {USES)
Sale of capital assals - - - 33,8675 33,675
Transfers in 1,044 460 182,493 - 1,181,300 2,408,253
Trensfers out {574,000) - - (788,794} (1,363,794)
Total other financing sources and uses 470,480 182,493 - 425,181 1,078,134
Net change in fund balances 418,797 832,004 1,724,138 80,627 3,183,568
Fund balances {deficit) - heginning 8533112 {424,721} {865,884} 10,688,160 18,030,657

Fund balances {deficit) - ending

$ 9045008 § 507283 § 838244 §

10,778,787 $ 21,194,223

See accompanying nofes io the financial slatements.
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Exhibit E

CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenue
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
To the Statement of Activities
Year Ended December 31, 2015

Net change in fund balances - fotal governmental funds $ 3,163,566

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement
of activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures.
However in the statement of activities, the cost of these asseis
is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported
as depreciation expense or losses when disposed of.

Capital outlays 3,085,235
Depreciation {3,124,804)
Net book value of assets disposed {20,589)

Ceomdributed caplial assefs are reporied as revenues inthe
statement of activities. 680,818

‘%
The issuance of long-term debt { e.g. notes, leases) provides currg;;ﬁ%
financial resources to governmental funds, while the repayrgefat
the principal on long-term debt consumes ouy ng fin
resources of government funds. Ne;thex;ﬁtg’én ac%@g,{'imwever has
any effect on net position.
Principal paid ci"f? I‘ong-teg;q{\g bt ﬂ%} @ & 615,000

Hin? ~guc
Gavernment funds repz?‘@e cisof prs n’i&gms ¢ iy
chiscounts and refundi wheaﬁtﬁ de asgir‘s issued, whereas
these amounts are deferf a and ja-. e statement of
activities. This amount | i ﬂng; Eff?;gt e differences in the

treatment of these tems. 6,212
%‘3«
Some expenses reported in %he statement of activities do nol
require the use of current financial resources and therefore, are
not reporied as expendifures in the government funds
Compensated absences {156,488)
Accrued interest payable {33,824)
Revenue in the governmental funds that provides current
finanscisl resources but has been previously reported as
revenue in the statement of activities
Net special assessments (178,317
Long-term assets, deferred outlfiows, and Habilities related to net CPEB
and pension obligations, are not due in the current period and,
therefore, are not reported in the fund statements. The change in the
net OPEB asset, net WRS pension asset and net DPW pension
obligation reported in the Statement of Activities is not reported in
the fund statements. 81,627
internal service fund change in net position 21,711
Net change in net position of governmental activities $  4,140.07¢

See accompanying notes o the financial statements,
Page 30



CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
General Fund
Statement of Revenue, Expendifures and Changes in Fund Balances -
Sudget and Actual {on a Budgstary Basis)
Year Ended December 31, 2015

Exhibit &

Varlance with
final budget -

Bucigeted Amount Favorable
Qriginal Final Actual {Unfavotabie)
REVENUE
Taxes $ 18425700 % 18,125,700 % 18058721 § {65 978}
intergovernmental revenus 2,480 500 2,480,500 2,775,349 284,848
Licenses and permits 862,100 862,100 £65,367 {192,733}
Fines, forfeitures and penattiss 422 600 422,800 484,957 82,357
Public charges for services 1,515,070 1,524 870 1,544,611 19,741
Intergovernmental charges jor services 201,300 201,300 162,188 {9,112}
investment earnings {loss) 206,500 208,500 238,562 32,082
Miscellansous revenue 103,500 103,500 155 578 52,076
Total revenue 23,817,270 23,827 070 24,120,331 193,281
EXPENDITURES _
Current %@Q
General governmernt 3,676,118 @5% 924 2,711,718 844,208
Public safety 1 6,289,014 @::36 332,888 15,880,875 342,013
Public works 4“ ;594 ‘?%5‘,;& 3,562,872 3,079,890 482 982
Heaith and human setvices ;’% 656,732 £33,388 23,344
Cuiture and recreation f§ 18 . {?55 328 181,573 178,452 5121
Conservation and development ?*%’é ng‘}% 480427 4 670,382 477,062 193,260
Tolal expendifures ﬁﬂi - gt %,’8&3“2?@ £ XITO8 08D,341 23,089,385 1,880,856
¢ {@% f“;f‘“&w ) { r}‘%‘i" . 1
; £ o ey
Excess (deficiency) of re;}rjfu‘g ¢ L "%;@ - 5;{}?
over {under} expendstureé{ o ‘f,:}" @{j} b e *e{w-} {928,000} {1,133.27%; 1,050,848 2,184,217
% % # . ‘;“ -
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {USE! }2 %@”{ﬁ;ﬁ D
Transfers in Né{} 175,000 175,000 - {175,000}
Transfers out N {698,000} {749,060) {574,000) 175,000
Net change in fund balance -
budgetary basis (1,450,000) (1,707,271} 476,946 2,184,217
Adjustments to generally accepted
accounting principles basis
2015 encumbrances - - 147,121 {147 121}
2014 encumbrances - - {207 270) 207,270
Net change in fund balance - generally
accapted accounting principles basis {1,450,000) {1,707,271) 416,787 2,244,388
Fund Balances - beginning 8,633,112 8,633,112 B,833,112 -
Fund Balances - ending $ 7483112 $ §£825841 § 50489808 § 2244368

See accompanying notes to the financial stetements.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
81, 11t of Met Posith
Propiletary Funds
December 34, 2015
{with comnparative information for December 31, 2014}

ASSETS
Current assais

Cash and investments

Receivables
Accounis receivable
Taxes racsivable
Due from oiher funds
Due from ofher governmanis

Prepaid expenses

Advance o offer kinds
Total current assels

Noncurant assels
Restricted cash and investments
Due from other govemments
Regulatory asasts
Net OPEB Aszest
Capitat assels
Larxd
Buildings and improvements
Improvements other than bulldings
Wachinery and squipment
Constuckon i prograss
{ess accumulated deprecislion
Total capital assels (net of
accummiated depreciaion)

Total noncurrant azsets

Total assets

DEFFERED QUTHLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred pension tesources

Total defeired outfiows of resources

Page 32

Business-iype Activitins - Enterprise Funds Governmental
Water Water Sanitary Sanitary Current Activities
ittty 1tility Sawer Sewer Yoar internal
_Current Year Prior Year Current Year Prior Year Totals Service Funds
5 B28,364 § 2403805 § - % 1532100 % B28364 § 2567068
1,305,818 1.281,230 1,143,385 1,188,712 2,463,201 192
167,052 188 877 124633 110.305 281,585 -
167818 20,918 89248 2 73532 197028 -
- - a"&""\ 4,109 - -
4033 - %23 - £,348 £7 500
= ke - - 1068000
2,417 881 E&S&ES%%L 4,350 346 3,208,758 3778421 3,732,760
e gy
A
PRS0V B amsaoe 313558 356,106
M ?g%, 254311 500 PRUSEEM 25311900 -
ijdgw RS O - 434,057 -
¢ W0 2305 el ; - 538
"352 B85+ }g; 162885 358,340 358,340 521275 -
Y. 359 ?2 k 1812979 3H7FH 1621433 £,646,943 -
-
% 56,332,111 54,380,957 54115277 108,240,808 -
1,823,630 796,870 770,714 5,246,977 -
* H 389 183,552 19,095 188,058 40,484 -
{17,147 492} {15338,874)  {14223919)  {135434451 (31371411} -
45476112 45 076 B3 44 608,914 43430374 95,084 028 -
45.511.488 45 576,883 70,278,235 £2 859,963 _ 118,180,777 -
48,328,565 ABSTZTi4 71,638,585 73,088,621 119,867,154 3,732 760
188,264 — 166,114 - 286,384 -
480,266 - 108,414 - 286,380 -
Congnued




LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Accounts payable
Arcrued liabilties
Accrued inlerest payable
[ue & otber funds
Special deposits
Current partion of long-lerm obligations
TFotal current liabifities

Noncurren] labilities
Pension Liability
Genemat obligation notes payable
Accrued compensated absences
Tostal noncurrert liabiltties

Long-term advances

Fotal liabiliies

NET POSITION
Met investment in capiial assels
Restricted for
Sewer equipment replacement
Unrestricted

Total net position

See aceompanying notes 1o the financial statements.

Exhibi

gm; zg;ugggz
CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN :
Statement of Net Position i
Proprietary Funds .
December 31, 2015 :
{with comparative information for December 31, 2014}
|
Business-iype Activities - Enterprise Funds Governmeantal
Water Water Sanpitary Sanitary Gurremt Activities «
Utitity Utitity Sewer Sewsr Year Internal
Currant Year Prior Year Cwrrent Year Prior Year Totais Bervice Funds
% 830208 $ 810,828 § 547821 8 BIDB7E 3 1428134 & 378
21,798 295071 ;giﬁb? 224073 53,865 270,500
11,562 1451 739 96,373 413,301 -
186,335 g55 5564 .o 100,815 10,216 296,250 -
86,845 0 wﬁ&ﬁgr 1.188.896 1,159,672 1275745 )
1, ;55,2747‘ o 478,720 . 2.030,348 2,128 007 3,167 095 270,678
P » "\W?NV fsxif M ”{:k}
»,;2; Eﬁ = {j% VBT s :
CRY o0A%TD ofd 133,402 - 377,974 ;
P s 1457 320 o i_j%’m 494 21,200,228 22,357 276 20,267 548 -
N T ST 35381 30,883 70.761 - ;
75 ‘;M«xz,zz 23 1,252 379 21,369,011 22 388 15§ 22 818 983 - :
o ij z i ‘r
w0 - 2,198,616 2,198,616 2,198,518 - :
2684012 2,431,108 25 597 875 28,714,782 28 181,994 270678
44,252 762 45,076,083 44,608,914 43490374 88,661,706 -
- - 358,106 313,558 356,106 -
1572024 1,464 723 1,181,704 2,550,007 2853 728 3.451,882
$ 45924B18 % 465416808 § 45148724 § 46354839 5 B2071540 § 3,461 8682
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Exhibit H
CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
Statement of Revenue, Expenses antd Changes in Fund Net Position
Praptietary Funds
Year Ended December 31, 25
{with comparative information for December 31, 2014}
Business type Activities - Enterprise Funds Governmentad
Waler Water Sanitary Sanitary Cutrent Acthvities -
Utility Lrtlity Sewer Sewer Year Inzernal
Curent Year Erior Yesr Current Year Prier Year Totals Service Funds
{OPERATING REVENUE
Meisred sales
Resitential $ 2822150 § 2872235 § 1E7TLM3 B 1840264 § 4,603,263 B
FAudi-famiy 883,537 - 424 760 - % 1,088,247 -
Comimercial F1E 86 4,386,861 487 475 £36,378 1,245 751 -
intdusirial 362,069 388,418 406203 396,238 748,272 -
Pubiic authority 250,751 283,823 133,385 152,853 384,146 -
Totz melered sales 4,904,323 4732475 3,303,448 3,234,825 §,208,788 -
Goup health & deniat charges - - st - - 3148 718
Unmsterad sales 11,285 8557 353 - 14,385 -
Public e protection sarvice 837,722 511473 PRy 2 - 547,722 -
Private fire proteciion service 124,086 118,154 o - 124,655 -
Forfeted distounts, penallies and other 53443 -7 51 52'3“‘ by A 24472 $0.379 -
Total operating revenue 5,609,923 Yy 5‘4,2%& 3,347 382 2,265,567 £ 850,310 3.148.718
z-@ % -
OPERAYING EXPENSES {gz {}z .
Cost of sales and services . 3, 62‘ ,5‘5&1, - ai;ﬁ?&?& B72 2730846 6,300,343 3,1686.302
Depreciation and amordzation = ,;ia ;,‘%i%e( % #neFsri L™ eu2000 851,745 2,250,423 -
Administration {’Eg R e Lo BYE 186 43400 21&935 201,202 703103 -
Tots} operufing expenses v 3 ?55*453 5;13=5,1335 3588716 3,583,756 9,343 BAT 3,195,302
" Y ~:v
i
Ciperating invome {loss} % E"‘smﬁds §‘~}; 365 784 (2482343 {326,606} {393,567} 46 583}
£ %
NONGPERATING REVENUE {EXPENSES) g,njg e
investman! earnings {loss) ‘\E 3,388 (£, 5043 588,740 &iB,731 563128 68,264
Sundry R 67,475 48,263 5126 1515 73801
inierest expense £30,937) (21,8083 {555,704} {587 ,150) 570,641} -
Total non-opsraiing revenue (BXpenses) 56,806 22,850 36,582 64,196 56,086 38,394
income foss) before capital cantributions
and fransters {85,217} 388,734 (212,152) {285 703) {257 468 21211
Capial contiutions 544 420 406,060 24,831 156,235 566,281 -
Tranafersin - g73.r2? - - - -
Transfers oul {3.044.640 {1,044 445} 34409 24518y (1.044 4508 -
Change in net position 1584.837) 574,075 (380,740 (117.886) 1775877} 21711
Hel posEon - beginhing 45,541,606 43,817 .53 46,354 839 45,472,725 92 806 445 3,448,174
Rastaternent - pension {31.853) - {17.375} - {49, 228) -
het posfion - beginaing {reskated) 48 505753 45.817,531 45,337 464 48472 725 928471217 G2 368 258
Not position - ending $_ 45224845 5 ASSL1 606 § 48146724 3 4BISARIN § 92071540 § 3,461,882

See gecompanying nofes W the financa statements.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCGNSIN
Stafaent of Cash Flows

Propriefary Funds

Year Ended Dacember 31, 2015
{with comparative information for the year ended December 31, 2014}

Business-type Activities - Entecprise Funds

o

Exhibit §

yot

Water Water Sariitery Sanitury Turrent Activities -
Uity Usility Sewer Sewer Year Infernat
CurrertYear  Prior¥ewr = _CumentYest  Srior Year Igtale Service Fonds
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts fom cuslomers and users & 5367658 % 5224511 5§ 3382646 5 299142% § 8TRR272 § 361324
Receipts for interiund services provided 273,956 269,224 - - 273.685 -
Paymeris o suppliers £3,580,074) (3,151,893} {2,534,518) (2, 17C 454} {6,414.582; (3,301,404}
Paymenis o employess : {616,822) {487 ,161) €403 655} {431 8933 i4,020.577) -
Paymenis for inlesfund services used (95.600) {85,400 {85 600} (25 4004 {433 200} -
Net cash flows pravided by (used in}
operating astivities 1,378,046 4 750,781 347 843 283 BG4 1. 725884 ($40.180%
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPTTAL 4k
FINANCING ACTIVITIES (‘%‘{‘i‘ H
‘Fransier out - pait for tax eouivaient 1,041,048 (1844446) o~ SA3415) (2418 {1,044 450y -
~h kT
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND . LAY b1 )
RELATED FINANTING ACTVITIES . u-/:‘;_{z‘i - wued ky
Procasds from capial debt PRICRACIN )2 X - 23,214 - -
Transfers ffam oRier finds 5 - o Y - - - -
Advances from clher ARds ? g < AE ol - 1693576 - -
Loss ors Dispous of Asset %7 i )?1,“&2‘5 LRt - - 88,741
Paymenis on capial debt P A gi;%sa.oa : PN £4,120248)  (4,402,492)  14,18¢ 245} -
Advapces fo ather governments 33,.3 . ‘Q{‘ - £}~ g: W Fd4,031 604 546} 744,831 -
Interest on capitat deit P ,a.-i_ T e @{3 (20,358} (564,338) {551 464} {564 338} -
Agnuizition of capitat assels ¥ A AR ESB Y {480.51) {1.77418%) _ (184,683} (3721735 -
Met cash provided {usedi by capitat o $5.75 (1L 91E85) 1629352 {2 723736} {FB5 G187 (4 P3G551y -
ant raaied financng sctivies P ST
[
CASH FLOWS FRONW INVESTING ACTIVITIES %“\3
Paymanis receivar oy advantes {o ofher funds - - - - - 4,260,000
lnvesiment earmings 3,388 14,5043 589,760 £46.733 593,128 88,264
et cash provided {used) by investing activilies 3,358 i4 504} 583 760 646 731 593128 1.348, 2G4
Nt increase (docrease) in tash
and cash eguivalents {1,575,441) 2,349,683 {1,788,552) 172,258 (3,364,993} 1. 178,414
Cash and tazh eqidvalents - Baginning 2,403,805 54422 2 145 B6E 1,973 360 4.545.463 1.408 954
(ash and cash equivalents - Fnding g 426364 5 2403805 % 366,106 5 3145868 B 1,984470 & 2 2557 068
Cash ang investments - Unresticted 3 828,364 § 2403805 § - 5 18321780 B g28364 & 2587068
Cask and investments - Restricted - - 356,186 313,558 58,108 -
5 828.364 § 2403805 & 356106 & 2145658 $ 1184470 3 2587088
. Continusd

See aceompanying notes o the financlal staterents.
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Exhib# §

{concluded}
CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds
Year Ended December 31, 2045
{with comparative information for the year endad December 31, 2014)
Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds Governmental
Water Water Sanitary Sanitary Current Activities -
Liility ity Sewer Sewer Year internat
Curent Year Fiier Year Cutrent Year Frior Year Totals Service Funds
Reconciilatlon of operating incomae {foss) to net
cash provided by operating activities
Operaling incame (loss) § (44520321 5 386784 S (248334 § (326898 § (303E57y § (465831
Adjustments to reconcife operating income (foss) 1 net
cash flows provided by operaling activities é
Depraciation 1EE7.514 1,097,571 ¥ %d2,900 §R1.745 2250423 -
Depreciation aliocated fo ether funds 12,435 s %%g‘ﬁ {12,435} {5,424} - -
Nonopersiing revenues 87, 4}%;; ,AQ) 6,126 1,615 73,601
{Increase) decrease In assels : ‘f:
Accounts receivable gﬁﬂ?’ 586}9 {{; © 26478 46,327 {300,639} 17,741 11,505
Taxes receivable ig%(s 04@{ {14,328} 22,048 8,497 -
Prepad expense FE A x [33 4 . (2,105} - {6,148} -
[lue from other funds A ;E , Cf&t-s 2& {15,687} {18,824} {102,578} -
Due from ather goveraments A @ ; k _ st 2 . 4,108 {4,100} 4,100 .
Regulatory assel ?{}% | el 2% - -
Other post employment benefits assst . 2@3 ) B) {2,318} {4,638)
Pension benefits %‘f v 4 }1?@ 2616} (105,114} {286 380}
increase (decrease) in Habilties . ‘E{}
Accounts payable [ 18,274 75,280 {241,748} 258,051 {222 474} {5,102}
Accrued Habifities (183,473} 214 582 19,754 3979 {173,874 {100,600}
Due 1o other governmenis - - - - - -
Due {o other funds 120,751 (122.940) 4y, 708 {761; 220,486 -
Customer deposits {1083} {2,400} - - {100} -
Pension obligations 212719 114,027 328,746
Compensated absences 5 G20 3,582 5 520 3682 11.840 -
Totat adjusimenis 1,523,269 1,363 407 586,177 §20.763 2,118,448 93,5073
Net cash flows provided by {used In)
oparating activities $ 1378046 $ 1750281 § 347843 & 093884 § 1725588 § (140180
Noncash Capital Activities
LCost of Uity plant installed and/or fnanced
by extemal parties or the City § 541420 % 4060680 $ 24831 § 150235 § 568251 § -

See accompanying noies 1o the financial statements.
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Exhibit J
CITY OF FRANKLIN, WiSCONSIN
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position
Fiduciary Funds
December 31, 2015

City of Franklin
Agency Post Employment

Funds Benefits Trust
ASSETS
Cash $ 52804482 § 187,669
investments:
Fixed Income Securities - Corporate Bonds - 1,185,435
Domestic Equities - 2,876,660
Infernational Equities - 449,124
Totai Cash & Investments 52,804,482 4,708,888
Accounts receivabie 9,068 941
Taxes receivable 18,319,156 -
Due from Municipatity - -
Total assets $ 71,182,707 § 4,709,829
LIABILITIES g ;":{%5%
Actounts payable - -*“ﬁ{i o ~0%'g 185535 § 146 844
Accrued liabiiities LR SA - 45,000

A Y .
m A TS A - A
Due to other governments 3% e _,@{?5‘? Py 70,95?,2-35

Due to municipality i o ..
SR VU A L 9,937

. N o7,

Special deipos_;its_ ;:& L g} ATy -
Total Habilities - "*"’f k% ’{;ﬁgﬁ% : $ 71,132707 191,844
Total net position %Td iy f’u k

for post empiayme‘?ﬁﬁeneﬁgs $ 4517 985
o+

See accompanying notes 1o the financial stalements.
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Exhibif K
CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position
Fiduciary Funds
Year Ended December 31, 2015

City of Franklin.
Post Employment
Benefits Trust
ADDITIONS
Contributions
City of Franklin $ 475,451
Refirees 55,444
Net investment earmings 18,704
Total additions 579,589
DEDUCTIONS
incurred claims 612,282
Prescription drug claims 88,845
Claims fees 10,187
Stop Ioss premiums less claims received {:}{%% {231,461)
Total deductions § -l 479,853
. /125'\3 A;iﬂ&%@*
Change In net position . mﬁ% eld iY . 99,746
¢t rx f .
NET POSITION HELD IN TR}}%T FOR=! WO i»{a:g} %%é
POST EMPLOYMEN‘{»B’&NEE{!{*S&“‘ A2 T aul
" Beginning of ybar LU L 40 L m@’@“‘ 4,418,239
PP | BT
o ﬂdgﬁ{} o b -
End of year = SR $ 4,517,985
SIS
N

See accompanying notes o the financial statements.
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"CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2015

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SISNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanving summary of the City of Frankiin's more significant accounting policies is
presented to assist the reader in interpreting the financial statements and other data in this
report. These policies, as presenied, should be reviewed as an infegral part of the
accompanying financial statements. The accounting policies of the City conform 1o accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America as applicable to governmental
ynits. A summary of the significant accournting policies follows:

A. REPORTING ENTITY

This report includes all of the funds of the Cily of Franklin. The reporting entity for the City
consists of (a) the primary government, {b) organizafions for which the primary government is
financially accountable, and (¢) other organizations for which the nature and significance of their
relationship with the primary government are such that their exclusion would cause the reporting
entity's financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. A legally separate organization
should be reported as a component unit if the elected officials of the primary government are
financially accountable to the organization. The primary govemmeni is financially accountable if
it appoints a voling majority of the organization’s governing body ad {1) itis able to impose its
will on that organization or (2} there is a polential for t ea,a?gamza‘iion to provide specific
financial benefits to or burdens on the prima overnmer * The primary government may be
financially accountable if an organization. jsiisc bg’d‘ependent on the primary government. A
legally separate, tax exempt orgamza’aoﬁ §hou 631‘16 reported as a component unit of a reporting
entity if all of the following cnteﬂg}ai‘e rne f(;'t} the economie resources received or held by the
separate organization are gntfre tss‘ _ﬁimgst &t rel f@’“%e direct benefit of the primary
government, ifs compogar; congﬁit}ent&,» :ﬁ]e primary government is entilied to, or
has the abliity to otherwis Ega aior] Jxofv‘thﬁaconomnc resources received or held by the
separate organization; @che geonom tMQources received or heid by an individuat
organization that the spec;ﬁg;gnmaryﬁ vemment or its component units, is entitied to, or has
the ability to otherwise access, @igntf cant to that primary government. Bliended component
units, although legaily se;:arafg% tities, are, in substance, part of the government's operations
and are reported with similar funds of the primary government. Discretely presented component
units would be reporied in a separate column in the government-wide financial statements fo
emphasize that it is legally separate from the City. This report does not contain any discretely
presented component units.

Blended Component Unit

The Community Development Authority (Authority) was created by the City in 1992 {o serve as
a financing vehicie for certain Tax Incremental Districls (TID) development within the City. The
Authority is govermned by a seven member board appointed by the Mavor and confirmed by the
Common Council. Although # is legally separate from the City, the Authovity s reported as f i
were part of the primary govemnment because its sole purpose is fo finance and manage cerfain
TiD deveiopment projects for the benefit of the City. The Authority's operations are inciuded in
the governmenial activities of the government-wide financial stalements and in a TiD capital
projects fund. The Authority follows accounting policies of the City.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2015

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY CF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PoLicies (continusd)
B. GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Governmen{-Wide Financial Statements

The slatement of net position (Exhibit A} and slatement of aclivities (Exhibit B} display
information about the reporting government as a whole, They include all funds of the reporting
entily except for fiduciary funds. The slatements dislinguish between governmental and
husiness-type acliviies. Governmental activiies generally are financed fhrough taxes,
ifergovermmental revenue and other non-exchange revenue. Business-lype aciivilies are
financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties for goods and services provided.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree that direct expenses of a given segment or
function are offset by program revenue. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable
with a specific funcion or segmerd. The Cily does not allocate ali indirect expenses to functions
in the statement of activities.

Program revenue includes 1} charges o cusiomers or appi;car}}z%ﬁ‘w?ao nurchase, use or directly
benefit from goods, services or privileges provided by a{kgwen ‘function or segment, and 23
granis and contributions that are restricted fo meetmg tlng@pera’t;onai or capital requirements of
a particular function or segment. Taxes aqd@’ther iternd nof included among program revenue

are reported as general revenue. i aiy %é%é’thted resources are reported as general
revenus rather than as pfogram {%&f@me {4@‘% mgg 3
s 5 &
LR SN
Fund Fmancnalgs@téﬁgemg N v ﬁéﬁ,ﬁ

Financial statements of tﬁ’eirépo ’g’{‘entxty%‘% brganized into funds with a fund considered to
be a separate accounting entziy%ach fﬂj}d is accounted for by providing a separate set of self-
balancing accounts that cons’izng%@assets deferred outflows, liabiliies, deferred inflows, het
positionffund equity, revenue é*ﬁdfexpendituresfexpenses

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds and
fiduciary funds with the latter being excluded from government-wide financial statements. Major
individual government funds and maijor individual enterprise funds are reported as separate
columns in the fund financial stalements.

Funds are organized as major funds or nonmajor funds within the governmental and enlerprise

fund statements. An emphasis is placed oh major funds within the governmental and enterprise
categories.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2015

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
B. GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
Fund Financlal Statements (continued)

A fund is considered major if it is the primary opersting fund of the City or meeis the following
criteria:

a. Total asseis and deferred outflows, lizbilties and deferred inflows, revenue, or
expenditures/expenses of that individual governmental or enterprise fund are at least 10
percent of the corresponding total for all funds of that category or type.

b. The same slement of the individual governmental fund or enterprise fund that met the 10
percent test is at least 5 percent of the corresponding total for all governmental and
enterprise funds combine_d.

¢. in addition, any other governmental or enterprise fund that the City believes is important
to financial statement users may be reported as a ma;o{i fufg

-
Major Governmental Funds &@é o o

General Fund — accounts for the Clggs'ﬁﬂ;w uc};eratmg activities. lf is used to account for ail
financial resources excepi ih%;fé ufredaie bem:counteg for in another fund.
x{*wf
Lk

M

than enterprise fund cféﬁf?; @ws
e %3%”’
TIF Districts Fund — accounts’fi nyesource accumuiation from fax increments and other revenue
of the TiD along with payméﬁis made for capital outlay, other expenditures, principal and
interest on long-term debt obligations of the TIDs. Each TID is a sub fund of the TID Fund.

Major Enterprise Funds

Enterprise funds are used to account for operations (3} that are financed and operated in a
manner similar to private business - where the intent of the governing body is that the costs
{expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods or services fo the general public on a
continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges, or {b) where the
governing body has decided that periedic determination of revenue eamned, expenses incurred,
and/or net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public pelicy, management control,
accountability or other purposes.

Water {Hility Fund — accounts for operations of providing water services fo Cify residents and
bilis for those services.

Sanitary Sewer Fund — accounts for the operations of providing sanitary sewer services for City
residents and bills for those services.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2015

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)
B. GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
in addition the City reports:
Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Special Revenue Funds — account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources {other than
major capital projects) that are leqally or policy restricted to expenditures for specified
purposes, The funds include Library Operatfing, Library Awdliary, Solid Waste Collection, 5t
Martirr's Fair, Donation, Civic Celebrations and Grant.

Capital Projects Funds — account for resources accumuiated to be used for the purchase of
equipment, street replacement, acquisition of land and the construction of capital
improvement projects. The funds include Capital Outlay, Equipment Replacement, Capital
tmprovement, Street improvement, Utility Improvement and Development.

Other Fund Types %Csf%“;

Internal Service Funds — account for the pay ent by, té:ré ‘t'izty for active employees of group
health and dental charges for serv;ce—gg d stg 0% insurance charges and the billing of
departments or agencies of the&ff@ onf%i ost-resmbursement basis for the services
received. oee i{;ﬁ {:@

{g‘:‘:} zz A QV

Fiduciary Funds — accoﬁq%’i?er a,%sets%e df"Eil‘i?ze n a trustee capacily or as an agent for
individuals, private ’iargamz&i iaﬁﬁ?or%g/@??xmental units. The fiduciary funds include a
property fax fund, aﬁwoﬁxer agéncy “that records the agency activity for emergency
govermment, monztonng N *:Iﬁmgg ViU&S funded by others, an escrow fund and a posi-
employment benefits trust fur;gf r”ret;ree group health ccsts

€. MEASUREMENT Focus, BAsss OF ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION
Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide statement of net position and statement of activities are reported using
fhe economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Under the
accrual basis of accounting, revenue is recognized when earned and expenses are recorded
when the liability is incurred or economic asset used. Revenue, expenses, gains, losses, assets,
deferred inflows, liabilities and deferred outflows resulting from exchange and exchange-ike
transactions are recognized when the exchange takes place. Property taxes are recognized as
revenue in the vear that they are levied for.

Taxes receivable for the following year are recorded as receivables and deferred inflows. Grants
and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by
{he provider are met. Special assessments are recorded as revenue when earned. Receivables
are recorded as revenue when setvices are performed.
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December 31, 2015

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PoLIciES (continued)

€. MEASUREMENT FoCUs, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION
{continued)

Government-Wide Financial Statements (continued}

As a general rule, the effect of inferfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide
financial statements. Exceptions to this general rule are charges between the City's Water Utility
and Sanitary Sewer fund and various other functions of the government. Elimination of these
charges would distort the direct costs and program revenue reported for the various functions
concerned.

Fund Financial Statements

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenue is recorded when it
is both measurable and available. Available means collectible within the current period or soon
enough thereafter to be used to pay Habilifies of the current nm§ For this purpose, the City
considers grant revenue to be available if they are collected iuyjfhm 150 days of the end of the
current fiscal period and all other revenus io bgiavaf abigiiﬂ‘ %&ey are collected within 60 days of
the end of the current fiscal period. Exper{ teires age “fécorded when the related fund liability is
incurred, except for unmatured mteréﬂ%n lovggxtérgr?) debt, claims, judgments, compensated
absences and pension expendit §%1ch;ar£ re gﬁzed as@ fund liability when expected tc be
paid with expendable available ﬁnancgalg%‘sowgesz : {};

{% M° &a?gwf -;‘,‘;s; fm\i‘h W
Property taxes are re‘bordeei the \_,gea“rjievg dﬁé’t‘s‘ receivable and deferred inflow and are
recognized as revenue thg' 8341‘1)[ whe%seﬁﬁées financed by the levy are provided.

€40 Ly i

Intergovernmental aids and gra{l]g atf& recogmzed as revenue in the period the City is entiiled to
the resources and the amoupts” are available. Amounts owed to the City are recorded as
receivables. Amounts not available or received prior to the entitlement period are recorded as
deferred infiow.

Special assessments levied for benefits to property owners for installation of sanitary sewers,
water mains, roads, and other improvements are recorded as revenue when they become
measurable and available. Annual installiments due in future years are recorded as receivables
and deferred inflows.

Revenue susceptibie to accrual includes property taxes, room taxes, public charges for services
and interest. Other general revenue such as permits, fines and forfeitures, licenses and
miscellaneous revenue are recoghized when received or when measurable and available under
the criteria mentioned above.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2015

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

C. MEASUREMENT Focus, BAsIS OF ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION
{continued)

Government-Wide Financial Statements {continued)
Fund Financial Statements {continusd)

Deferred inflows are reporied on the governmental funds balance sheet Deferred inflows arise
from taxes levied in the curent year that are for subseguent year's operations. For
governmental fund financial statements unearned revenues arise where potential revenue does
not mest both the “measurable” and “available” criteria for recognition in the current period.
Unearned revenue arises when resources are received before the City has a legal claim to
them, as when grant monies are received prior to the incurrence of qualifying expenditures. In
subsequent petiods, when both revenue recognition criteria are met or when the City has a legal
claim fo the resowrces, the liability is removed from the balance sheet and revenue is
recognized. %
Sy
Proprietary and fiduciary fund financial statements (other than@ﬁency funds} are reported using
the economic resources measurement focus and the faggﬁéf?l basis of accounting. Agency fund
financial statements are reported using ﬁ%éf;é Mrggagb”ﬁa”‘éis of accounting and do not have a
measurement focus. D S
o3 AN T N 4
. e P AR S L
Proprictary funds d;s%mgurgi% fope&a%tgﬁﬁpngg@&ze:ﬂ.va%n%ﬁmeﬂses from nonoperating items.
QOperating revenue an%ggé%hs;ggﬁnéraﬁ’ resilt _gréﬁfﬁroviding services and delivering goods
in connection with the p‘?éprigdt;i Tun ’%{ﬁriﬁgﬁgﬂa@%ﬁemtiom. The principal operating revenue of
the Water and Sanitary S*j & fu;;;gjg are ¢ arges to customers for sales and services provided.
The rates billed in the Wét@ﬁﬁ;{?%ﬁy areapproved by the Public Service Commission. Sanitary
sewer charges are billed at rates gs ablished by City policy based on the charges received from
the Milwaukee Metropolitan S’gfﬁérage District and local operation and mainienance expenses.
The principal operating revenue of the internal service fund is charges to other funds for group
health coverags.

Operating expenses for proprietary funds include the cost of sales and services, administration
and depreciation on capital assets. Revenue and expenses not meeting this definition are
reported as nonoperating revenus and expenses.

All Financial Statementis

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principies generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect reported amount of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilifies at the date of the financial statemenis and reported amounts of revenue
and expendituresiexpenses during the reporting period. Actual results could vary from those
estimates.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2015

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

D. AsSSETS, LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION OR EQUITY

1.

Cash and Investments

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the City considers all highly liquid invesiments with
an initial maturity of three months or less {o be cash equivalents.

The City of Frankiin maintains two invesiment policies. The first covers all funds except fiduciary
funds for retiree health purpeses. The objeclive of this policy is 1o generate current income,
consistent with safety and reasonable risk as defined under prudent person rules. As operating
reserves, the quality, liquidity and mafurity structure of the portfclio are most important. The
investment policy:

f.

b.

d.

e.
f.

Regquires a minimum rating at fime of purchase of Aa3 by either Moody's or Standard &
Paor's,

Limits an issuer to 10% or less and asset classes to 35% Gf less of the fair value of the
portfolio with the exception of U.S. Government Treasut}j;;and Agency securities that
have the full faith guarantee of the U.S. Govemmem,

Specifies a minimum amount of cash equivalents! Be mamtamed an average life of the
portfolio not exceeding 6 years andmmdwzéyai issue with a maturity exceeding seven
years at the date of purchase td;{irmt mté“&sii rate risk.

Limits investments highiy< §8ﬂ51tl§§ (o mg;ket c!ganges through ifs duration and
diversification poftmes/tcr!;i“mt mﬁcéj“é tra F@k

Prohibits the in \Aespﬁenm foq:esgn me‘é‘ seczfmﬁes

Limits derivative mves@ fs m%ﬁése vgth, ‘afinal maturity of seven years or less.
v.} 2 e ww}i “-&

In addition the City's mvestmenﬁ%mlrcy Egsfrgcts allowable investments to investments that follow
state siatules, section 66. 08@3 \;sdtciﬁfmsts investments fo:

a.

oo w

Time deposits in any credit unich, bank, savings bank, trust company or loan association
authorized to transact business in the state and maturing in three years or less.

The Local Government Investment Pool {LGIP).

Bonds or secutrities issued or guaranteed by the federal government.

Bonds or securities of any county, ¢lty, drainage district, {echnical college diskict, village,
town or school district of the Siate of Wisconsin. Also, bonds issued by a focal expoesition
district, a local professional baseball park district, a local professional football stadium
district, a cultural arts district, or by the University of Wisconsin Hospitais and Clinics
Authority and the Wisconsin Aerospace Authority.

Any security matuwring in seven years ol less and having the highest or second highest
rating category assigned of a nationally recognized rating agency.

Securities of an open-ended management invesiment company or investment trust
subject to various conditions and investment options.

Repurchase agreements with public depositories, with cerfain conditions.
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December 31, 2015

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PoLicies {continued}
D. AsSETS, LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION OR EQUITY {continued)
1. Cash and Investments {continued)
The second investment policy is for its fiduciary fund for retiree health purposes. The policy:

a. Requires the investment to be in a section 115 trust for retiree heaith purposes.
p. Regquires compliance with the “prudent person” standard.

c. Requires asset allocation policy that considers the liability stream of beneiits, the
relationship to current and projected assets, the historical performance of capital
markets and the perception of future economic conditions.

Primary investment objectives are safety, diversification and retum.

Allows invesiment in various asset ciasses.

Limits investment in equities after 2015 to 75% of lofal assets to be invested. Prior to
January 1, 2016 equity invesiments may be up to 100% of the assets.

oo

The City manages the various risks in its cash and Envestmentsa_gs;{éﬁows:

— deposits | ;ne&cess ofEDIC insurance limits are maintained
in thia@zS‘tate Lﬁ*ﬂ?b ecured bank balances in
atfiolings of at least:75% of the year end cash balances.

b. Creditrisk - secuntte&purtha ﬁeed ¥ Tza%ve an@% or befter invesiment rating.
c. Concentration %f—gerﬁd't fﬁk@ :ssué}%r agsg;@iass not {o exceed 10% of the markst

value of the portfolio with. geption of 5. issued securities.
d. interest rate risk r%fnana by Tienifif g the length of maturity of newly purchased

investments and limits zik?%‘%v%aﬁgﬂsfe of the porfolio to conlrol risk.

a. Custodial creditrisk -~ invesiments argfheid gg@%rgsiee of third party custodian,

investments are stated at fa?t&;\%ue which is the amount at which an invesiment could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties. Fair values are based on quoted
market prices. No investments are reported at amortized cost.

Adiustments necessary to record invesiments at fair value are recorded in the operating
statement as increases or decreases in investment income. Investment income on commingied
investments of various City Funds is allocated based on average investment balances.

The Wisconsin Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP) is part of the State Investment Fund
{SIF), and is managed by the Siate of Wisconsin Investment Board. The SIF is not registered
with the Securities and Exchange Commission, but operates under the statutory authority of
Wisconsin Chapter 25. The SIF reports the fair value of ifs underlying assets annually.
Participants in the LGIP have the right to withdraw funds in total on one day's notice. At
December 31, 2015, the fair vaiue of the City’s share of LGIP assets was substantially equal to
the amount reported in these stalements.
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December 31, 2015

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

D. AsseTs, LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION OR EQUITY {confinued)

2. Receivables
Property faxes are levied in December on the assessed value as of the prior January 1. In
addition to property taxes for the municipality, taxes are collected for and remitied fo the state
government, county government, three local school districts, fechnical college district and
metropolifan sewerage district. Taxes for all other governmental units billed in the current year
for the succeeding year are reflecied as receivables and due to other faxing units on the

accompanying fiduciary funds statement of fiduciary net position.

Property tax calendar — 2015 tax roit:

Lien date and levy date December 2015
Tax bills maited December 2015
Payment in full, or January 31, 2016
First instaliment due J Q%agé/ 31, 2018
Second instaliment due MNiarch 31, 2016
Third instaliment due A~ _ci-May 31, 2018

Personal property taxes in full gf{iﬁ . gjguf January 31, 2016
Final tax seftlement with County%g y 3 " ?‘} August 20, 2016
Tax deed by County - 20153¢%" % @ &
Delinquent real estate ;?xes{ S T ~8YOctober 2018
AL T S St AR

G L ORI
Accounts receivable have been shawiinet of>an allowance for uncollectibie accounts. No
provision for uncoilectibIé{«a&om@%&miyab‘fe“ﬁ%s been made for enterprise funds because of

their right by law to place da%gﬁ%h% %1?@36% the tax rofl.

T
Syt
£3e

Duting the course of operatioisg%:@rénsactions occur between individual funds that may result in
amounts owed between funds, Short-term interfund loans are reported as “due io and from
other funds”. Long term interfund loans are reporied as “advances from and o other funds™.

Interfund receivables and pavables between funds within governmental activities are eliminated
in the statement of net posifion. Any residual balances ouistanding between the governmentai
activiies and the business-type acltivities are reported in the government-wide financial
statements as “infernal balances”.

In the general fund financial statements, advances tc other funds are coffset equally by
nonspendable fund balance which indicates that they do not constitute expendabile available
financial resources and, therefore, are not available for appropriation. Advances in all other
governmental funds are classified in fund balance based on the availability of repaymenis for
use.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)
D. AsseTs, LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION OR EQUITY {continued)
3. inventories and Prepaid ltems

Governmental fund inventory items, except fuel inventory, are charged to expenditures when
purchased. The fuel inventory is recorded at cost on a first-in first-out basis using the
consumption method of accounting. The cost of such inventories is recorded as
expenditures/expenses when consumed rather than when purchased. Year end inveniory was
not significant.

Proptietary fund inventories are generally used for construction and for operation and
maintenance work. They are not for sale. Material and supplies on hand at year end are
considered immaterial.

Certain payments o vendors reflect costs applicable fo future accounting periods and are
recorded as prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial statements. The cost of
prepaid items is recorded as expenditures/expenses wheﬁﬁsumed rather than when
purchased. %?g__}‘ '

#, i

4, Restricted Assets %?%f : ngx{}‘”"*

AL Uy
Mandatory segregation of ass gﬁé‘*g@é‘me%@s resfricted assets. Such segregation is
required by agreements withuexterna) @@ﬁies’igﬁ&éni gigﬁiﬁﬁes payable from restricted assets
are so classified. The P Egsiéh“ \ssefhas be;”%ﬁ ré‘”pog{efwﬁ‘és restricted. This asset represents funds
held by the Plan Trust, which gab. E;‘liyér@fﬁsl ' ;ggg@tﬁe Plan obligafions. The excess of restricted
assets over curent Eiabil‘s';f%é?’ wiii@@’use ir&t for equipment replacement. The remainder, #
generated from earnings, z’sggggfv'}ﬁ %%ré"js ficted net position.
&

5. Pensions i‘%@

For purposes of measuring the net pension Habilities (assets), deferred outflows of
resources and deferred infiows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense,
information about the fiduciary net positions of the Wisconsin Retirement System (WRS)
and the City of Frankiin Defined Benefit Retirement Income Plan {DPW) and additions
to/deductions from WRS and DPW's fiduciary net position have been determined on the
same basis as they are reported by WRS and DPW. For this purpose, benefit payments
{including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in
accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2015

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)
D. AsSETS, LIABILITIES AND NET PosiTioN OR EQUiTY {continued)
8. Capital Assets
Government-Wide Statements

Capital assets, which include property, plant and equipment, are reported in the government-
wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the government as assets with an initial
cost of more than $1,000 for general capital assets and $10,000 for infrastructure assets with
estimated useful lives of two years or more. Capitel assets are recorded at historical cost or
estimated historical cost if actual amounts are not available. Donated capital assets are
recorded at estimated fair value at the date of donation. Additions to and replacements of capital
assets of business-type activities are recorded at original cost, which includes material, labor,
overhead, and an allowance for the cost of funds used during construction when significant.

For tax-exempt debt, the amount of interest capitalized equals the interest expense incurred
during construction netted against any interest from tempora, i/estment of bomrowed fund
proceeds. $24,601 of net inferest was capitalized during the. nt year. The cost of renawals
and befterments relating to retirement units 1%\§dded t@@ ni accounts The cost of properly
replaced, retired or otherwise disposed - ;:&’335 e efg?e from plant accounis and, generaily,
together with removal costs less saiva%g“ﬁs c%aggéd fo the applzcable function.
G
Depreciation of all exhaustﬂgﬂe g(:}apliai“ aé%et %%”"Jeco;'ded as an allocated expense in the
statement of activities, Sv‘q!ifzccur:mfa &d dgp?écna (‘gjr%‘ﬁected in the statement of net position.
Depreciation is provide fbverih,é assg&{%ﬁt §t§ seful lives using the straight-line method of
depreciation. The rangs ofﬂsefui ggv& by Ast et"type foliows:
\.,3

Buildings and- fm ;a,vé@lents 10-50 Years
Machinery and ipment 2-30 Years
Water and sewer systems 20-100 Years
Infrastructure 30-90 Years

Fund Financial Statements

in the fund financial statements, capital assets used in governmental fund operations are
accounted for as capital outlay expenditures of the governmental fund upon acquisition. Capital
assets used in proprietary fund operations are accounted for the same in the government-wide
statemenis.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
D. AsseTs, LIABILITIES AND NET POsSITION OR EQUITY (continued)
7. Deferred inflows/Qutflows of Resources

Gains or losses on prior refundings are amortized over the remaining life of the old debt, or the
life of the new debt, whichever is shorter. The balance at year end for gains/losses is shown as
an increase or decrease in the deferred outflow of resources section of the statement of nst
position,

In governmental funds, property taxes receivable, special assessments and interest revenue not
yet due are not recognized as revenue in the current period. For the government-wide and
proprietary fund type financial statements, special assessments and interest revenue are
recogrized as revenue in the current period. This leaves property tax receivable as a deferred
inflow of resources in the statement of net position.

Certain ftems affect the net pension asseti(syliabilitie(s) are amottized over the period
determined to be affected by the change. The balance at year &n’& of these items is report as
deferred outfiows of resources or deferred inflows of resoumeﬁ‘sectlon of the statement of net
position.

8. Compensated Absences e U
AR S AT .
T ~Z A
Under terms of employment; entp oye&f?nay{;g%m cg@ﬁénsatow time and are grapted sick
leave, severance pay apd %cangmﬁ varfing a oubts."Only benefits considered to be vested
are disciosed in these %taiemeh%s Aij *{este g@mﬁens&tory fime, severance pay and vacation
£y
pay are accrued when metm’éd 1n:ffie ‘goyery ent-wide, proprietary and fiduciary fund financial
statements. A Hability for t ese&mo dt%‘jis reported in governmental funds only if they have
matured. For exampie a liabili 3's a‘fesuit of employee resignations or retirements are payable

with expendable available res@u

Payments for vested compensatory time, severance pay and vacation pay will be made at rates
in effect when the benefits are used. Accumulated vested compensatory time, severance pay
and vacation pay liabilities are determined on the basis of current salary rates and include
salary related payments. Vacation and compensatory time are used on a first-in, first-out basis.
Accordingly all accrued amounts are considered to be due within one year. Severance due
within one year is estimated based on employee age and expected retirement.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2015

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
D. AsseTs, LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION OR EQUITY (continued}
9. Long-term Obligations/Conduit Debt

All long-term obligations to be repaid from governmental and business-type resources are
reported as liabilities in the government-wide statements. The fong-term obligations consist of
notes and bonds payable and accrued compensated absences.

Long-term obligations for governmental funds are not reported as liabilities in the fund financial
statements. The face value of debt (plus any premium) is reported as other financing sources
and payments of principal and interest are reported as expenditures. The proprietary fund
accounting is the same as it is in the government-wide statements.

The City has approved issuance of industrial deveiopment revenue bonds (IDRE) for the benefit
of privaie business enterprises. IDRB’s are secured by mortgages or revenue agreements on
associated projects of the business enterprises. The IDRB's do not constitute indebtedness of
the City. Accordingly, the bonds are not reported as liabilities in tlpe“ﬁnanclal statements.

i ‘i.}‘.

i ﬁ'}‘f:;
10. Claims and Judgments . f» é x.»i"}mb

Claims and judgmenis are reccrdeq:%*; aﬁﬁ%ﬁés if all the conditions of Governmentai
Accounting Standards Board ;)mﬁe@ncerge‘rﬁs argzmet. ﬁazms and judgments ihat would
normally be Hguidated with @x;aehdabiegévai t&fiﬂan ai Tesources are recorded dwing the
year as expenditures 1@%&3@@0@%&%}1 fufigs: I 1 'wﬁre not to be liquidated with expendable
avallable financial reseurcesbfﬁo 4:a‘bﬂ;ty gae gnized in governmental fund financial
statements. The related éxpéndi weﬁs recégmzad when the Hability Is liquidated. Claims and
judgments are recorded | in the ﬁa g;nt -wide statements and proprietary funds as expenses
when the refated liabifities aré nam:ed There were no significant claims or judgments at year
end. R
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2015

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)
D. ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION OR EQUITY (continued)
11. Equity Classifications
Governmeni-Wide Statements
Equity is ¢lassified as net position and displayed in three components:

a. Net investment in capital assets — Consists of capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of bonds, mortgages, notes, or other
horrowings that are atfributable 1o the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those
assets. Deferred outfiows of resources and deferred inflows of resources that are
attribuiable to the acquisifion, construction, or improvement of those assets or related
debt are also included in this component of net position. Unspent related debt proceeds
are excluded from the calcutation of net investment in capital assets.

b. Restricted net poesifich — Consists of restricted assels tgétgced by liabilities related fo
those assets. Generally, a Hability relates to restricted ﬂ§sefs if the asset results from a
resource flow that also resuits in the ,;:acogmt Qfm}f a lisbility or if the liability wilt be
liquidated with the restricted assets {e‘i’:éﬁeq s;n

”‘a W w *»;2

¢. Unrestricted net position -{j@ﬁe het qgiaunt afthe as ets, deferred outfiows of resources,
liabitities, and deferred inflows of%esoumé%ﬁhat afénot included in the determination of
net investment m%éfarta{,a?sé&f 05} t@%estr;g@ﬁmomponeﬁts of net position.

When both restricted and?tf%rest%gte& resohrces are available for use, i is the City's policy 1o
use restricted resources fi rsgf» t{;&n urz{rg;%mcted resources, as they are needed.

~t %Q
Fund Statemenis ‘\:«‘W -

Fund balance of governmental funds is reported in various categories based on the nature of
any limitations requiring the use of resources for specific purposes. The government itself can
establish lmfation on the use of resources through either a commiiment (restricted fund
balance) or an assignment (assigned fund balance).

The committed fund balance classification includes amounts that can be used only for the
specific purposes determined by a formal action of the government's highest decision-making
authority. The governing council is the highest ievel of decision-making authority for the
government that can, by adoption of an ordinance prior to the end of the fiscal year, committed
fund balance. Once adopted, the limitation imposed by the ordinance remains in place untit a
simitar action is taken (the adoption of another ordinance) to remove of revise the imitation.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2015

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PoLicies (continued)
D. ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION OR EQUITY (continued)
12. Equity Classifications {continued}
Fund Statements {confinued)

Amounts in the assigned fund balance classification are intended to be used by the government
for specific purposes but do not meet the criteria fo be classified as committed. The governing
council {Common Councit} has by resolution authorized the Director of Finance & Treasurer to
assign fund balance (Resolution 2014-7025). The Common Council may also assign fund
balance as it does when appropriating fund balance o cover a gap between estimated revenue
and appropriations in the subsequent year's appropriated budget Uniike commitments,
assighments generally only exist temporarily. In other words, as additional action does not
normally have to be taken for the removal of an assignment. Conversely, as discussed above,
an additional action is essential {0 efther remove or revise a commitment,

13. Comparative Data i}% ﬁg
The basic financial statements include comp?raiwe gséia}‘ for the prior year for individuat
enterprise funds in the fund financial stal 3 lg:gpr er to provide an understanding of the
changes in financial position and opes&tf@ﬁ ?’iésse funds. This comparative data is not at the
level of delail required for a p@g@ﬁatio 4h o ;%fermity ith general accepted accounting
principies. Accordingly, suchmﬁe?ma@oﬁ‘%haui%b&reaémﬁﬂ njunction with the City’s financial
statements for the yea@enéedmﬁgaae’mbef:’j ; 20,4@“?%01}} which the data was derived. Also,
certain amounts presen d in megérto%yéér da@“hb”‘#’e heen reclassified in order to be consistent
with the current yeat's p;‘&g iakagg,w

Y
s

NOTE 2 - STEWARDSHIP, CcM#{.imgéema ACCQUNTABILITY
”‘m

A. BUDGETARY iNFORMATiON

Budgetary information is derived from the annuai operating budget and is presented using the
same basis of accounting for each fund as described in Note 1 C with the exception of
encumbrances, transfers from the General Fund to Special Revenue Funds and tax equivalent
from the Water Utility. Actual (budgetary basis) expenditures presented reflect actual (GAAP)
expenditures adjusted for expenditures budgeted under the prior period and encumbrances
expected fo be liquidated under the current period budget. Actual (budgetary basis) revenue
presents the tax equivalent from the Water Utility as tax revenue while GAAP basis statements
present this tem as a transfer.

A budget has been adopted for the General, Debt Service, Library, Solid Waste, Capital Outlay,

Equipment Replacement, Capital improvement, Street improvement, Development, Sanitary
Sewer and Water Utility funds. Budgets have not been formally adopted for other funds.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2015

NOTE 2 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY (coritinued)
A. BUDGETARY INFORMATION {continued)

The budget amounts presented include any amendments made during the year. The City may
authorize fransfers of budgst amounts within departments. Transfers belween departments and
changes o the overall budget must be approved by a two-thirds vote of the Common Council.
Supplemental appropriations during the year were not significant. Appropriations lapse at the
end of the year unless specifically carried over. Carryovers to the following year were not
material. Budgets are adopted for personnel and non-personnel expenditures at the function
level.

B. LIMITATIONS ON THE CITY'S TAX LEVY

As part of Wisconsin's Act 40 {2011), legislation was passed that fimited the City's future tax
levies. Generally, the City is limited to its prior tax levy dollar amount (excluding TIF districts},
increased by the greater of the percentage change in the City's equalized value due 1o new
construction, or 0%. Limited amounts of unused tax levy may be carried forward info the
following year. Changes in debt service from one year {o the n{ggraré generally exempt from this
fimit. )

ol e

C. Excess EXPENDITURES OVER APPRO{@I&T?ONE{% Oy
B % g:}‘ ",s e

The City controls expenditures %itfqe fum:té:}n leyiet (e.g. public safety). For the year ended
December 31, 2015 the @ene | Fugﬁ‘ dg;% e exceéd{“budged expenditures, except for

. et
Alderman personnel se{gjge:s W@%ﬁ A

o

0 o0 %’
NOTE 3 - DETAILED NoTES e AL&PﬁNDS
\;g} {3 i}m

A. CASH AND INVESTMEN s

‘ﬁﬁ@&

The City maintains a cash and investrment pool that is utilized by aill funds. Each fund’s portion
of this pool is displayed on the statement of net position and balance sheet as cash and
investments of the City. In addition, investments are separately held by several of the funds.

Deposits in each local and area bank are insured by the FDIC in the amount of $250,000 for
fime and savings deposits and $250,000 for demand deposits.

The City's bank accounts are also insured by the State of Wisconsin Deposit Guarantee Fund in
the amount of $400,000 per financial institution. However, although the fund had reserves
available at December 31, 2015, the future availability of resources to cover the losses cannot
be proiected because provisions of the 1985 Wisconsin Act 35 provided that the amount in the
fund will be used to repay public depositors for losses until the appropriation is exhausted at
which time the fund is abolished.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2015

NOTE 3 - DeETAiLED NOTES ON ALt FUNDS (continued)

A. CASH AND INVESTMENTS (continued)
The City maintains a collateral arrangement with its main bank to provide collateralization in
excess of deposits maintained at the bank. The collateral is maintained in the form of a letter of
credit from the Federal Home Loan Bank of Cincinnati in the amount of $20,600,000. Cash and
invesiments as shown on the December 31, 2015 City of Franklin Statement of Net position are
subject {0 the following risks:

Catrying Bank & Investment

Value Balances Risks
{ocal Government investment Pool  $ 233,082 % 233,082 Credit and interest rate
Money market furids 204,884 204,834 Credit and interest rale
Certificates of deposit 1,470,000 1,470,000 Custodial
U.S. freasuries 2,004 062 2.004,082 Interest rate
1.8, agencies 70585737 7,058,737 Credit, interest rate
and concentration of credit
Municipal Bonds 1,041,060 1 041»0%@ Credh, interest rate
Corperate notes 6,540, 859 éﬁ’:ﬁ 859 Credit, interest rate
’”“’ « and concentration of credit
Totat fixed income investments 9»%84 18,549,684
Equity funds JRtte< 475 GBS 3,475,966 Custodial
Fixed income funds e @4‘5 253 o 4,045,253 Custodial and credit
Cash and demand deposits « « © . 258,751 492& (55,526,385 Custodia
Total Qigf}‘s S (§ ¢ 82 852805 sw 78,597,288
e W r&%., w ﬁ%%‘;
Reconciliation to the ﬁnan%szﬁ %g}emenis{g shown below:
£

RS
Per Statement of Net Posmemwu
Primary Government:

Unrestricted cash and investments $ 24,852,829
Restricied cash and invesiments 356,106
Per Statement of Fiduciary Net Position - Agency Funds 52,804 482
- Post Employment Benefits Trust __ 4708888

Custodial Credit Risk For deposits - Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of 2
financial institution failure, the City's deposits may not be returned to the City. As of December
31, 2015, none of the Cify's total bank balances of $ 55,528,385 were uninsured and
uncollateralized and therefore exposed to custodial credit risk. For investments — Custodial
credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the City will not be able
to recover the value of its invesimenis or coliateral secuities in the possession of an outside
party. All of the City's investments except the Local Government Investment Pool have a -
party relationship with the investments held by a parly independent of the party managing the
investment.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2015

NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)
A. CASH AND INVESTMENTS (continued)

Credit Risk Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty will not fuifill its obligation.
The City's policy requires a minimum credit rating of Aa3 at time of purchase. The City's fixed
income investments subject to credit risk include agencies securities, corporate asset backed
securities, corporate honds, government repurchase agresments and money market funds and
were rated by Moody's investor Service.

As of December 31, 2615, 89.7% of the fixed income investments were in rated fixed income
investments and subject to credit risk. The ratings as a percentage of the total investment
portfolio were as follows: Aaa at 48.1%, Aatl at 8.8%, Aa2 at 10.9%, and Aa3 at 4.3%. The
portfolic makeup of fixed income investments was corporate securities at 35.3%, treasury and
agency securities at 48.8%, Municipal Bonds at 5.6%, certificates of deposit at 7.9%, Local
Governmeni Investment Pool at 1.3% and monsy market funds at 1.1%. The Local Government
Investment Pool and money market funds are not rated but are subject to credit visk. The
certificates of deposit are not rated and are not subject fo credit risk. Equifies and fixed income
mutual funds held in trust at 18.6% make up the remainder of tbefggxlestments and are nof rated.

Concentration of Credif Risk Concentraison Q{ red;t nﬁéjﬁ%e risk of loss atfributed to a large
investment position in a single issuer. A$ Decy eriber 31, 2015 no issue other than U.B.
Treasury and Agency securities thai B e ‘the fﬁ atith guarantee of the U.8. government and
the Local Government nvestmegg ool - haa a Qgﬁgiion g{ greater than ifen percent of the
portfolio. &7 %, i Al A {};

“%}'g - m”v«f i & ﬁ{% A{:@g
interest Rate Risk iﬂtérest r,a}éa hsngisw %he isk hat rising interest rates will have an adverse

impact on the fair value %@fﬁ%e ﬁgestman “if{ ‘the portfolic. The longer the maturities in the
portfolio the greater the ﬂskgaf@}s ts@gsrtfol;a value.

The portfolio policy fimits this‘»nﬁf%y limifing the length of permitfed investments and limits the
purchase of invesiments highly sensitive tc market changss.

As of December 31, 2015, the Cify's investments exposed fo interest rate risk were as follows:

Fair Investment Maturity in vears
investment type (in thousands) Value Less than 1 1-35 5-7

Money market funds $ 204884 % 204884 $ - %
Certificates of deposit 1,470,000 1,225,000 245,000
U.8. freasurnies and agencies 5,058,798 4,000,834 5,058,965
Municipal bonds 1,041,060 - 1,041,080
Corporate noles 8,540,859 1,998,075 4,542 784
Local government invesiment pool 233,082 233,082 -

Total $ 18549684 § 7,661,875 § 10,887.808 B
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2015

NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUunDs (continued)
B. RECENABLES

Receivables consist of sccounts, taxes, notes and special assessments from citizens and
others. Receivables are reported net of uncollectible amounis. The reserve for bad debts,
principally for personal property taxes and ambulance revenue, was § 80,108 at December 31,
2015, Other than the special assessment receivables, all other receivables are expected to be
colizcted within one year.

C. DUE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTS

in 2011, the City entered into an intergovernmental cooperation agreement with another
government where the other government will reimburse the City for substantiaily all of the debt
service cosis resulting from the City faking on a Stale Clean Water Fund Loan. Those
reimbursements will start in 2015 and will continue over the life of the loan, ending in 2031, This
is presented as Due from other governments in the statement Net Position,

D. RESTRICTED ASSETS gﬂ*‘*"‘% \j
In accordance with the City's ordinance eﬁacﬁng a seweﬁﬁﬁr charge system and regulations of
the Department of Natural Rescurces, : ﬁﬂ; éam&g}‘y “Sewer Fund — an Enterprise Fund,
incorporated an equipment repiacem t‘?:‘ﬁé:‘ ¢.48’3 component of the rate structure to be used
for significant mechanical equspmggm fepiag_?mem ag; reqwred by the Wisconsin Department of
Naturai Resources. Revenuarg‘enega f{O[?ﬁ} !s ;:@a‘rg‘e is accumulated and used for
replacement of ceria;w@rpmgmw?he ba%ahce Aglthis account at December 31, 2015 is
$356,106. BT 5 1 0 ot

s%l o T QoY
The Pension Asset has beer};mreﬁar’sed sF geﬁtncted This asset represents funds held by the Plan
Trust, which can only be usedo §$gfé lan obligations. The balance of the Pension Asset related
to the Wisconsin Retirement Sﬁsiém (WRS) at December 31, 2015 is $2,066,135.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2015

NOTE 3 - DeTaie0 NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continusd)
E. CARITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2015 was as follows:

Beginning _ Ending
Governmental Activities Balance Additions Cispositions Balance

Capiial assets not depreciated:

Land $ 248488631 % 319,060 § - § 25288681

Construction in progress 423,313 1,188,207 430,617 1,180,803
Total capital assets not depreciated 25,372,944 1,607,267 430,617 28.449 584
Capital assels depreciated:

Buildings & improveinents 24,717,845 163,057 - 24,880,902

Machinery & eguipment 17,514 597 1,245,775 822,380 18,137,882

Infrastructure 03,860,788 1,280,571 - 85,141,358
Totat capital assets depreciated 136,063,230 2,688,403 822,380 138,160,253
Less: Accumulated depreciation for g%

Buildings & improvements 9,104,243 488ﬁ5 - 9,662 251

Machinery & squipment 10,888,324 @?@39 337 601,811 11,325 850

Infrastructure 26;&8%923%{} 1,587 54¢ - 28,186,472

e I 3 Y
Total accumulafed depreciation g} ANl 6;58’5 499 3,124 894 601,811 48,104,573
i, Y] =
4 i PreAS
Net capital assets deprema@m U aaE a%ﬁ*rzm 4 1h {436,491) 20,568 89,065,680
e ﬂ?%v R AL
% 267y m,‘ ’t

5 :
Governmenial aclivities capxtai{ssé}ts, R m:j}%(@;«f

i

net of accumulated depreé;aﬁen Mi&;#% 413,884,634 $ 1071776 5 451,186 $ 115505274

Depreciation expense was ah&géd 1o functions as folfows:

Governmental Activities

General government 5 136,550
Public safety 702,123
Public works 1,834,325
Health & human services 6,096
Culture & recreation 344,062
Conservation & development 1,738

Total governmental activities depreciation expense $ 3,124.894
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2015

NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)

E. CariTal ASSETS (continted)

Baginning Ending
Balance Additions Dispositions  Adjustment Balance
Business-type Activities

Capital Assets not depreciated:

Land 5 521,225 % - - $ £21,225

Construction in progress 361,810 3,668,220 3,879,346 - 40,484
Total capital assets not depreciated 872,835 3,668,220 3,979,346 - 561,708
Capital assets depraciated:

Buildings & improvements 3434412 3,338,718 124,187 - 6,646,843

Machinery & equipment 2,684,341 158,387 261,153 2,705,403 5,206,978

Infrastructure 110,447 588 847,540 875245 (1470476) 108,048 807
Total capital assets depraciated 116,576,741 4,342 645 1,250 585 1,234,827 120,883,728
Less: Accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings & improvements 1,238,632 168,244 108,382 - 1,301,484

Machinery & squipment 1,833,171 267,488 ,.225818 1,824,833 3,488,884

irfrastructure 26,008,518 1,484,248 et gm 5 \40 {38 {863,495} 26,570,233
Total accumulated depreciation 28,882,319, 4 8%@% ' 372,236 £61,338 31,371.411

g% FoLemia
Met capital assels depreciated 8}’89‘4 422“‘% %ﬁ" 2%42 855 888,348 273,580 89,522 317
{'” g &1 i {# =
Business-type Activities Capital Asseﬁﬁ {Wﬁ%{} s £ o %:}
Net of Accumulated Deprecxat $: BEEa7 057 $" 8,40 575 $ 4867665 § 273585 $ 90084025
s W "
P15 fm o S
% i 3 j 5 {"& ‘im'
Ao\ S S o %ﬁ"

Depreciation expense wasﬂchaﬁed io ?@pcﬂons as follows.

Business-Type Acfivifles: u* £ 7
Water o~ z.}r
Sewer ‘
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2015

NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDs {continued)

F. INTERFUND REGEIVAELES, PAYAELES AND TRANSFERS
Interfund balances result from the time lag befween the dates that (1) interfund goods and
services are provided or reimbursable expendifures occur, {2} transactions are recorded in the
accounting system and (3) paymentis between funds are made. In all cases amounts are repaid

within one year.

For the statement of net position, interfund balances ovwed within the governmental activities or
business — type aclivities are netted and eliminafed.

The interfund receivables and payables at December 31, 2015 are as follows:

Receivable Fund
Water Sanitary

Pavable Fund General Nonmajor _Utility Sewer Total
Generat $ - § - 8§ 97 ?%E"’E é 34082 $ 91,809
Non-Major 11,552 ;m- o - 11,552
Water Utility - 1%1’“{98 oSBT - 55137 186,335
Sanitary Sewer 59,832, A A a iy o 50,083 - 100,915

&gtm o Eé
Totals $w },”f 384 @35%31 3&8"‘“"% 1{%? 810 ¢ 89218 § 399611
B sl A A

The City of Franklin pr@élde% sh%rt Qn?cﬁon }agn“advaﬂces fo its TIF Districts. The amounts
advanced are sither fro fé?‘f)ceeds of a bm‘é\&'mg or from fund reserves. They are used o
enable the TIF Districts to cafﬁgﬁut a gwed pro;ec{* plans and may be replaced in the future by
direct borrowing. The TiF D;gtﬂ(}i?{ erest rate is based upon the interest rate incurred by the
Debt Service Fund on ifs bo&"r@v%mgs or the reinvesiment rate available to other funds. The
advances will be repaid as the proportionate principal amounts in the Debt Service Fund are
gdue or when TIF District resources are available.

Recelvable Fund :
internal Capital Projects Due within

Payable Fund General Service Development Total ane year
TIF Districts $ - & 1083000 % 850,600 § 1,038000 § 1,388,000
Sanitary Sewer 2. 188,6116 - - 2,198,616 -

$ 2198616 $ 1088000 B 850000 3 4136616 $ 1,383,000

Generally, transfers are used to (1) move revenue from the funds that collect them to the fund
that the budget reguires 1o expend them, {2} move receipts restricted {o debt service from the
funds coliecting the receipts to the Debf Service Fund and (3) use unrestricted revenue
collscted in the General Fund fo finance various programs accounted for in cother funds in
accordance with budgetary authorizations.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONGSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2015
NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALt FUunDs (continued)

F. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES AND TRANSFERS {continued)

Transfers as presernted on the fund financial statements dwing the year ended December 31,
2015 were as follows:

Transfars Out
Nonmajor
{Zenerat Governmental Enterprise Fand
Fund Funds Funds Tolals
Transfers in

General Fund & - % - § 1,044,450 & 1,044 458
Drebt Service Fund - 182,494 - 182,484
Nonrmgjor Governmendal Funds L4 000 567,300 - 1,184,300
Total & STA000 & 786704 & 1044450 % 2 403 J53

A reconciliation of fund statement fransfers to government wide fransfers for the year ended
December 31, 2015 is as follows:

Governmental Funde™  Enterprise Funds

Transfers in per fund statements $ Zéﬁ-s 253 % -
Transfers Out per fund stalements Al i ‘3% 363,794) {1,044 459)
Government Wide Transfers “,,@Sf% 54«3 g*@é 1,044,459 $ (1,044,459)

A
% Ly
. DEFERRED INFLOWS %%n DE&ER@‘SBT L’G’WSJ e {%

Govermnmental funds reﬁm’t d@fé é’a mﬂgWs fn cgcfneicﬂon with receivables for revenues that are
nof considered to be avagia i; ate ifaﬁ?itf‘ ies of the current period. Governmental funds
also report deferred inflows argeiézmecﬁﬂ Wath resources that have been received, but not yet
earned. Property laxes recev ble fé,)}%he subsequent year are not earned and cannot be used
o liquidate liabilities of the c;.args%t‘lt period. At the end of the current fiscal year, the various
components of deferred inflows reported in the financial statements were as follows!

{navailable Unearned Total
Governmenial funds.
Propetty taxes receivable $ - $ 24809701 $ 24,808,701
Special assessments not yet due 1,204,211 - 1,204,211
Total deferred inflows '
for governmental funds 5 1204211 $ 24808701 § 26013812
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2015
NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FunDs (continued)
H. LoNG TERM OBLIGATIONS

General Obligation Debt

Long-term liabiiities for the year ended December 31, 2015 were as foliows:

Amounts
Beginning Ending due within
Balance Additions Delstions Balance ohe year
Governmental Activities
General obligation debt $ 12935000 § - § 615000 § 12,320,000 $ 1,550,000
Premium 252,273 - 48,371 203,902 -
Sub-otal 13,187,273 - 663,371 12,523,802 1,950,000
Compensated absences
Accrued vacation pay 427865 1,002,753 890,132 440,276 440,276
Accrued severance pay 1,188,583 221,672 ggxﬁ@zs 1,318,330 68,896
Accrued compensatory time 208,096 240,140 ,,j'f:;é 226 022 222214 222214
Total compensated absences 1,824, 334 ia%éfil 164 56h & 1,308,078 1,880,820 731,386
Governmental activities s if% a
Long-term fiabilities § 1%}51? éﬁ}}, ﬁ“’% m@dg‘éﬁ "‘E,Q?MSD $ 14504722 § 25681385
s m@} i s W

All general obligation ﬂot @@d*éondii ana&ﬂé‘aﬁ backed by the ful faith and credit of the Cily.
The notes and bonds will be reweﬁﬁﬁ’y %@e property tax levies, special assessment collections
and designated landfill reveﬁa%

1@@,
The governmental activities c%mpensated absences primarily accrue to and are paid from the
City's General Fund.

Amounts
Beginning Ending due within
Balance Additions Deletions Balance one year
Business-iype Activities
General obligation debt $ 24776522 % - § 1184245 § 23592277 $1,212048
Discount {13,307} - {826) {12,681) -
Subtotal 24 763,015 - 1,183.41% 23,579,596 1,212,048
Compensaled absences
Accried vacation pay 44 159 39,300 41,880 42179 42178
Accrued severance pay §1,769 8,991 - 70,760 -
Accrued compensatory fime 16 691 9,845 5 M7 21518 21518
Business-type activities
Long-term lizbilities $ 24885834 § 58736 $ 1230318 § 23714054 §1,275745
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN

NOTE 3 - DetaiLeD NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)

H. Lonc Term O2LIGATIONS (continued)

Details of general obligation notes and bonds payable as of December 31, 2015 are as follows:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2015

Balance
Date of  interest Principat interest Criginal Cutstanding
Type lssug Rate Pavable Pavyable Amount 1231

General obligation promissory notes

12/18/14 2.0-25

General obligation refunding bonds

113707  3.80
Total Governmental Activities Debt
Business-type Activity Debt

General obligation Clean Waler Fund Loan
1/25/12 2.462

Total Business-type Activities Debt

3/ 1/08-21 311 & 9N

51/14-31 5/1 & 1147
12/18/14 2.0-3.125 3/1/15-34 3/1 &97

i Bt

Eﬁﬂ’ig‘p

8,925,000

1,280,000

3/1/15-24 311 & 91 $ 5320000 $ 5,225,000 '

’% 562754 $ 22,357,277 2
1.235.000 °

7,055,000
$ 12,320,000

§ 23502277

! |ssued 63% for capital TiF purpg eg an{i 33% for géherai ca;:ntal purposes, * Issued for a

sewer extensioh on W Ryansgd”

Annual principal and i ntei‘es;jpéyme?jtsi@m g

payable are as follows:

Annual principal and mterest“fba

payable are as follows:

I

&m‘s*“

wf“

‘f@a}*‘*

1ssue§ r;yaiﬁr%ugid&ggﬁurposes

u;::f?ysan general obligation notes and bonds

@eﬁt% to mataﬁty on general obligation notes and bonds

Year Ending Governmental Aclivities Business-fype Activilies

31-Dec Principal interest Principal interest
2016 $ 1,950,000 $ 377598 § 1,212,048 $ 570,330
2017 3,010,000 287,388 1,240,535 540,393
2018 2,320,000 207,558 1,268,723 509,748
2019 1,365,000 143,887 1,298,629 478,371
2020 1,320,000 95,852 1,330,272 448,251
2021-25 2,355,050 82,848 7,168,066 1,713,235
2026-30 8,095,547 766,528
2031-35 1,976,457 40.202
Total $ 12,320, 000 $ 1,205, 629 $ 23582277 §$ 5085057

The City's statutory debt limit and margin of indebledness at December 31, 2015 are
$182.459,295 and $ 146,547,018, respectively. By City debt policy, the debt imit and margin of

indebtedness limit are $ 72,983,718 and § 37,071,441, respectively.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2015
NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continusd)

H. LoNG TERM OBLIGATIONS (continued)

Conduit Debt Obligations

Eieven series of Industrial Revenue Bonds originally issued with an aggregate principal amount

of $102,892,000 are outstanding with a December 31, 2015 balance of $93,157 637.

. NET POSITION/FUND BALANCES

Governmental Activities

Governimental activities net position reported on the government-wide statement of net position

at December 31, 2015 include the following:

Net investment in capital assets

Lang .
Construction in process ﬁﬁ
Other capital assets, net of accumulated deprecaaiion '
Less: related long term debt outstandt{gg ) %gi:"}
Net investment in capital asset;sg{i G@%‘% g
25 . N
Restricted for: ;‘:;%; %2@3’ f%:jg? s
Debt service f;’” ) g PR “}g@ @Q@
Utility improvefmiant (;;}‘%%‘ ey ™ g0V
Development ;&m o Y o ey
Library W{}% - e
Solid waste B R (GY
Recreation services gg%‘* i
Health
Donations
Total restricted
Unresiricted

Total governmental activities net position
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$ 25268691
1,180,903
89,055,680
(8,320,671)

107,184,603

482773
1,999,759
3,851,683

524,137

260,944

47 656

160,003

133,678

7.460,803

16,401,941

$ 131047147




CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2015
NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS {continued)

i. NET POSITION/FUND BaLANCES (continued)

Governmental Fund Balances

Reported on the fund financial statements at December 31, 2015 include the following:

General Fund - advances
General Fund - prepaid items and inventory
Library Fund - prepaid items

Total nonspendabie

Resiricted fund balances

Debt Service
Utility Improvements
Development s
TIF Districts e
Donations “é ok
Health services oot ?ﬁ
Library services Rt PR
Solid Waste o et e 5
% ke LS gaht
Recreational services T PR Yy
o AV
Totai resiricted }%W‘ a;'-}z = u \ gg’;}w
g & s,, i :.47‘%} 7
Assigned Fund balanges:” .ot o T
General Fund ﬂ$f;§ L0

Capital Projects: Al {ﬁ% e
Capital Outiay N
Equipment Replacemem
Capital Improvement
Street Improvement

Total Assigned fund blances

Unassigned fund balances
General Fund
TIF Districts - Deficit
St Martin's Fair - Deficit

Total Unassigned fund balances
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2,198,616
41,186
730

2,281.718

507,283
907,003
3,851,653
996,460
133,678
160,003
523237
260,944
47 656

7,387,917

147,121

668,161
2,304,643
1,689,835

245955

5,053,715

6,662,986
{138,216)
(12,711}

5,512,088




CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2015

NOTE 3 - DETAILED NoTEs ON ALL FUNDS (contfinued)
I. NET POSITION/FUND BALANCES (continued)
Business-type Acthvities

Business-type activiies net position reporfed on the government-wide statement of net position
at December 31, 2015 include the following:

Net invesiment in capital assets

Land 3 521,225
Construction in process 40 484
Cther capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 89,522,317
Less: related long term debt outstanding, net
of unspent bond proceeds (1,222.320)
Net investment in capital assels 88,861,708
Restricted for: A
Sewer equipment replacement TR 356,108
- - ?f:";‘j ;&m‘%%}
Unrestricted AR x%?a,ﬂ 2,853,728
PO A
Total business-type activilies nﬁg{@&iﬁ%@ . i;j‘ 3 92071540
: oo el e
LIRS i e A
({té‘:i% %fz‘g"uw %@ Sof m‘a‘g;‘—f
i;’;x{}% '-rx{;ztﬂfg‘ - ﬁ«.@ {‘
% 5;1_3 };j %ﬁi_’; 3
S0
W
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